
 

Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston, Nottingham, NG9 1AB  

www.broxtowe.gov.uk    

 

 
 
 
 
 

 

Tuesday, 5 April 2022 
Dear Sir/Madam 
 
A meeting of the Council will be held on Wednesday, 13 April 2022 in the Council 
Chamber, Council Offices, Foster Avenue, Beeston NG9 1AB, commencing at 7.00 pm. 
 
Should you require advice on declaring an interest in any item on the agenda, please 
contact the Monitoring Officer at your earliest convenience. 
 
Yours faithfully 

 
Chief Executive 
 
To Councillors: E H Atherton 

D Bagshaw 
S A Bagshaw 
L A Ball BEM 
M Brown 
B C Carr 
S J Carr 
M J Crow 
E Cubley 
T A Cullen 
S Dannheimer 
S Easom 
L Fletcher 
J C Goold 
D Grindell (Vice-Chair) 
T Hallam 
M Handley 
M Hannah 
R I Jackson 
E Kerry 
S Kerry 
H G Khaled MBE 

L A Lally 
P Lally 
H Land 
R D MacRae (Chair) 
G Marshall 
J W McGrath 
J M Owen 
P J Owen 
J P T Parker 
S Paterson 
J C Patrick 
D D Pringle 
M Radulovic MBE 
R S Robinson 
P Roberts-Thomson 
C M Tideswell 
I L Tyler 
P D Simpson 
H E Skinner 
D K Watts 
E Williamson 
R D Willimott 

 
A G E N D A 

 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

 To receive apologies and to be notified of the attendance of 
substitutes. 

 

Public Document Pack



 

 

 
 

2.   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

 

 Members are requested to declare the existence and nature 
of any disclosable pecuniary interest and/or other interest in 
any item on the agenda. 
 
 

 

3.   MINUTES 
 

(Pages 5 - 16) 

 The Committee is asked to confirm as a correct record the 
minutes of the meeting held on 2 March 2022. 
 
 

 

4.   ATTENDANCE AT MEETINGS 
 

 

 The Local Government Act 1972 states that when a 
Councillor fails to attend any meeting for six consecutive 
months from the date of their last attendance, then, subject 
to certain exceptions, they cease to be a member of the 
authority, unless the Council accepts a reason for the failure 
to attend before the six months expires. For personal health 
related reasons, Councillor Eileen Atherton is currently 
unable to attend Council meetings. In the circumstances, it is 
put before members to consider a dispensation under 
Section 85(1) of the Local Government Act 1972, for the 
period of six months from 13 April 2022 before which 
forfeiture applies. 
 
Council is asked to CONSIDER a dispensation for 
Councillor Eileen Atherton for a period of six months 
from the date of this meeting and RESOLVE 
accordingly. 
 
 
 

 

5.   REVISED CODE OF CONDUCT AND ARRANGEMENTS 
FOR DEALING WITH CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS 
 

(Pages 17 - 80) 

 The purpose of the report at appendix 1 that was presented 

to the Governance, Audit and Standards Committee is to 

present Members with a revised Members’ Code of Conduct 

and arrangements for dealing with Code of Conduct 

complaints.  

The revised Code is based on the new model Code (with 

local amendments) recently produced by the Local 

Government Association (LGA) following the 

recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in 

Public Life (CSPL).  

 



 

 

 

The Member and Officer working task group have revised 

the Code of Conduct for Members and the arrangement for 

dealing with complaints to ensure they are fit for purpose, 

provide clarity on expected behaviours and process, to 

promote high standards of conduct and trust and set out 

what the public can expect from their representatives.  

 
 

6.   CHANGES TO GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND 
DRAFT PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS FOR MAY 2022 TO 
APRIL 2023 
 

(Pages 81 - 96) 

 To update Members with the draft Programme of Meetings 
for May 2022 to April 2023 for Cabinet, Council and 
Committees and seek resolutions on issues in relation to the 
changes to governance arrangements. 
 
Further information is circulated separately to the agenda in 
relation to this item. 
 
 

 

 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



COUNCIL 
 

WEDNESDAY, 2 MARCH 2022 
 
 

Present: 
 

Councillor R D MacRae, Mayor 
 

Councillors: D Bagshaw 
S A Bagshaw 
M Brown 
B C Carr 
S J Carr 
M J Crow 
E Cubley 
T A Cullen 
S Dannheimer 
S Easom 
J C Goold 
D Grindell  
T Hallam 
M Hannah 
R I Jackson 
E Kerry 
H G Khaled MBE 
H Land 
G Marshall 
J W McGrath 
J M Owen 
P J Owen 
J P T Parker 
S Paterson 
J C Patrick 
D D Pringle 
R S Robinson 
C M Tideswell 
I L Tyler 
P D Simpson 
H E Skinner 
D K Watts 
E Williamson 
R D Willimott 
 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors E H Atherton, L A Ball BEM, 
L Fletcher, M Handley, S Kerry, L A Lally, P Lally, M Radulovic MBE and P Roberts-
Thomson 
 
Prior to the commencement of the meeting a minute’s silence was held for those who 
had lost their lives in the Conflict of Ukraine. 

 
 
 
 

Page 5

Agenda Item 3.



58 DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST  
 
Councillor C Tideswell declared a non-pecuniary interest on agenda item number 9, 
minute number 65 refers. Councillor S Easom declared a non-pecuniary interest as he 
was a Director on the LLeisure Board. Agenda item 9 Minute number 65 refers. 
Councillor G Marshall and S J Carr declared non-pecuniary interests as were on the 
Beeston Town Centre Board. Agenda item 9 Minute number 65 refers. Councillor H 
Skinner declared a non-pecuniary interest on agenda item 9 as she was on the 
steering group. Minute number 65 refers.  
 
 

59 MINUTES  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 15 December 2021 were confirmed and signed as 
a correct record.  
 
 

60 MAYOR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS  
 
The Mayor read a statement condemning the actions of Vladimir Putin and the 
Russian Government it its decision to invade Ukraine. 
 
The Council stood with the people of Ukraine and their friends and relatives living in 
the Borough and beyond. It was an unprovoked attack on a sovereign nation by a 
rogue state. The people that would suffer the most would be civilians on both sides 
and expressed unity and support for President Zelensky, the democratically elected 
Government and the people of Ukraine and called on the UK Government and its 
NATO allies to offer the maximum humanitarian aid and military support for the 
Ukrainian Government and people.  
 
A number of Councillors from all political groups rose to speak in support of the 
statement.  
 
 

61 REFERENCES  
 
 

61.1 PAY AWARD AND REVIEW OF ALLOWANCES  
 
Members considered the proposed pay award for 2022/23 that there should be a 2% 
increase in Members allowances.  
 
In accordance with the Scheme of Members allowances, Member allowance rates 
should increase in line with any employee pay award.  
 
It was noted that the current rates within the report related to the proposed Cabinet 
model. This was expected to be formally adopted at the Full Council in May 2022 in 
line with all other models of governance in place across councils in Nottinghamshire.  

 
RESOLVED that there should be a 2% increase in Member’s allowances at 

an increased cost of approximately £5,619 per annum. 
 
 

Page 6



62 PAY POLICY STATEMENT - 2022/23  
 
Councillors considered the Pay Policy Statement for 2022/23. Section 38 of the 
Localism Act 2011 required Local Authorities to publish an annual Pay Policy 
Statement to increase accountability in relation to payments made to senior Members 
of local authority staff by enabling public scrutiny.  
 

RESOLVED that the Pay Policy Statement for 2022/23 be approved. 
 
 

63 CIVIC EVENT - FREEMAN/ALDERMAN OF THE BOROUGH  
 
Members considered the request to host a ceremony at which the status of Freeman 
or Alderman was conferred on those who had rendered eminent services to the 
Borough.  
 
It was customary during the final year of an administration to recognise individuals 
who had contributed significantly to the community by conferring on them the award of 
Honorary Freeman of the Borough or Honorary Alderman.  
The Mayor and the Leaders of the three political groups would meet to consider the 
award and the nominations received for the office of Honorary Freeman or Honorary 
Alderman of the Borough of Broxtowe.  

 
 
RESOLVED that the official admittance to the office of Honorary Freeman 

of the Borough and Honorary Alderman will take place at a special meeting of 
the Council to be held in November 2022. 
 
 

64 URGENT ITEM - THE CHETWYND: THE TOTON AND CHILWELL 
NEIGHBOURHOOD FORUM RE-DESIGNATION  
 
Members considered the resolution of the Council to re designate the Chetwynd: The 
Toton and Chilwell Neighbourhood Forum for a further five- year period. The 
Chetwynd: The Toton and Chilwell Neighbourhood Forum had been working on 
producing a Neighbourhood Plan for the Neighbourhood Area. The current five-year 
period was due to end in March 2022. With re-designating the neighbourhood Forum, 
The Council would be able to apply for £5,000 grant funding form the Department for 
Levelling Up, Housing and Communities. It was stated that the forum has undertaken 
excellent work and they deserved the extra period.   

 
RESOLVED that: 
 

1. The Council re-designates the Chetwynd: The Toton and Chilwell 
Neighbourhood Forum for a further five-year period.  

 
2. Authority be given to the Chief Executive to publicise the designation of 

the Neighbourhood Forum in accordance with regulation 10 of the 
Neighbourhood Planning (General) Regulations 2012 (as amended).  

 
 
 

Page 7



65 TO APPROVE THE REVENUE AND CAPITAL BUDGETS, CAPITAL STRATEGY, 
TREASURY MANAGEMENT STRATEGY, INVESTMENTS STRATEGY, MEDIUM 
TERM GENERAL FUND FINANCIAL STRATEGY AND FIX THE COUNCIL TAX FOR 
THE YEAR COMMENCING 1 APRIL 2022  
 
The Deputy Leader wished the Leader, Councillor Milan Radulovic a speedy recovery. 
He also offered his sincerest thanks and gratitude to all the staff, residents, 
businesses and the emergency services who had worked tirelessly through the 
pandemic.  
 
Next year’s budget continued to focus on providing a wide range of services to the 
communities and secured the post COVID-19, economic, community and health 
recovery without any cuts or reductions in the services. The economic growth and 
investment strategy across housing, regeneration and business growth would be vital 
for the financial sustainability and improvement to residents lives.  
 
The Deputy Leader thanked the Chair of the Finance and Resources Committee and 
fellow Councillors and Officers in preparing the budget.  
 
It had been unfortunate that the Governments fair funding review had been delayed 
and therefore, it was not possible at this stage to profile what, if any, impact this may 
have upon the Council. It appeared priority would go to those authorities with social 
care responsibilities. The current 50% business rates retention would therefore 
continue in 2022/23, with the Government’s Fair Funding review for local government 
commencing Spring 2022. 
 
Members were informed that prudent estimates of income from business rates and 
assumptions that any increase would be in line with best information about the 
operation of the Business Rates pool and allowed for modest growth in the future 
years. The levels of New Homes Bonus would be greater than the previous year, in 
2021/22 the Authority received £19,395, in 2022/23 the Authority would receive 
£351,944. It was expected that the future of the New Homes Bonus Scheme after 
2022/23 would be considered as part of the upcoming Fair Funding review.  
 
The administration was proposing a small increase in Broxtowe’s element on Council 
Tax, this would see a £5 annual increase per Band D property taking it from £171.85 
in 2021/22 to £176.85 in 2022/23. This extra increase would support vital local 
services, provide value for money, build up the tax base and continue to support the 
post pandemic economic, community and health recovery. There was also a 
recommended 4.1% increase in housing and garage rent to enable more money be 
reinvested back into the housing stock.  
 
The delivery of the housebuilding plan was progressing well with the aim to deliver in 
the region of 250 affordable homes over the next decade. 
 
The current administration was committed to provide economic regeneration and 
improvements across all of the four town centres.  To capitalise on investment across 
the borough including the Levelling Up bids for both Kimberley and Eastwood, The 
White Paper on Levelling Up and Devolution.  
 
The Deputy Leader thanked the finance team for the rapid disbursements of business 
grants and reliefs to businesses across the borough.  
 

Page 8



The budget proposals included continued investment into parks and open spaces and 
support to community and voluntary groups including Citizens Advice Bureau who 
supported a range of Mental Health initiatives. 
 
The Green Futures campaign to tackle climate change and reduce the carbon 
emissions to net zero by 2027 would be supported. 
 
The Deputy Leader was delighted to announce that a one-off £10,000 budget would 
be set aside to fund a variety of events in celebration of the Queen’s Platinum Jubilee.  
 
It was anticipated that £350,871 would be drawn from the general reserves. The 
current balance totalled approximately £6.8m. A balanced budget over the lifetime of 
the medium term financial strategy would be worked on to retain a prudent level of 
finances.  This budget recommended no compulsory redundancies or reductions to 
front line services.  
 
It was welcoming news to hear the governments easing of COVID-19 restrictions and 
the opportunity to look forward to the opening of new food and beverage operators in 
Beeston, an affordable house building programme, significant investment from the 
Stapleford Town Deal, the Green Futures programme and a successful outcome from 
the Levelling up Bids.  
 
In accordance with the Local Authorities (Standing Orders) (England) (Amendment) 
Regulations 2014, a recorded vote was required. The voting was as follows: 
  

For Against Abstain 

D Bagshaw M Brown  

S A Bagshaw M J Crow  

B C Carr E Cubley  

S J Carr S Easom  

T A Cullen J C Goold  

S Dannheimer  R I Jackson  

D Grindell E Kerry  

T Hallam H G Khaled MBE  

M Hannah J M Owen  

H Land P J Owen  

R D Macrae J Parker  

G Marshall D Pringle  

J W McGrath P D Simpson  

S Paterson R D Willimott  

J C Patrick   

R S Robinson   

H E Skinner   

C M Tideswell   

I L Tyler   

D K Watts   

E Williamson   

 
 
 
 
 

Page 9



RESOLVED that: 
 

1. The recommendations arising from the Finance and Resources 
Committee meeting of 10 February 2022 as set out below be approved 
and adopted.  
 

 The Housing Revenue Account budget as submitted be approved. 

 The General Fund revenue budgets as submitted be approved. 

 The capital submissions and priorities within them be approved. 

 The Deputy Chief Executive be authorised to arrange the financing 
of the capital programme as necessary. 

 An amount of £25,000 be provided for a General Contingency in 
2022/23. 

 The Council Tax Requirement for 2022/23 including special 
expenses (but excluding local precepting requirements) be 
£6,131,631. 

 An amount of £3,296,871 be withdrawn from the General Fund 
reserves in 2022/23.  This will include: 

a) £350,871 from the overall General Fund balance. 

b) £30,000 added to the General Fund earmarked reserves. 

c) £2,976,000 from the Collection Fund Equalisation Reserve to 
cover the projected deficit relating to Council Tax and 
Business Rates in 2022/23.  Earlier Central Government 
Funding received has been set aside for this purpose.  

 The Capital Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25 be approved. 

 The Minimum Revenue Provision policy as set out be approved. 

 The Treasury Management Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25 be 
approved. 

 The Investments Strategy 2022/23 to 2024/25 be approved. 

 The General Fund Medium Term Financial Strategy to 2025/26 be 
approved. 

 
2. It be noted that, at its meeting on 6 January 2022, the Finance and 

Resources Committee approved the following amounts for the year 
2022/23 in accordance with the Local Authorities (Calculation of 
Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012: 
 
(a) 34,530.00 being the amount calculated by the Council, in 

accordance with regulation 3 of the Local Authorities 
(Calculation of Council Tax Base) (England) Regulations 2012, as 
its council tax base for the year. 

 
 

Page 10



 
(b) Part of the Council's area 

Parish of Awsworth 606.78 
Parish of Brinsley  695.96 
Parish of Cossall 216.56 
Parish of Eastwood 3,017.84 
Parish of Greasley 3,727.31 
Parish of Kimberley 1,855.54 
Parish of Nuthall 2,266.30 
Parish of Stapleford 4,178.70 
Parish of Trowell 832.42 
Beeston Special Expense Area 16,953.44 
 
being the amounts calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
regulation 6 of the Regulations as the amounts of its council tax 
base for the year for dwellings in those parts of its area to which 
one or more special items relate. 
 
The amount calculated for dwellings in those parts of its area to 
which no special item relates is 179.15. 

 
3. The following amounts be now calculated by the Council for the year 

2022/23 in accordance with Sections 31 to 36 of the Local Government 
Finance Act 1992 (the Act) as amended: 
 
(a) £56,166,544 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 

Council estimates for the items set out in Section 
31A (2) of the Act. 

 
(b) £49,097,145 being the aggregate of the amounts which the 

Council estimates for the items set out in Section 
31A (3) of the Act. 

 
(c) £7,069,399 being the amount by which the aggregate at 3(a) 

above exceeds the aggregate at 3(b) above, 
calculated by the Council, in accordance with 
Section 31A (4) of the Act, as its council tax 
requirement for the year. 

 
(d) £204.73 being the amount at 3(c) above divided by the 

amount at 2(a) above, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 31B of the Act, as the 
basic amount of its council tax for the year. 

 
(e)   £962,728 being the aggregate amount of all special items 

(including parish precepts and special expenses) 
referred to in Section 34(1) of the Act. 

 
(f)  £176.85  being the amount at 3(d) above less the result 

given by dividing the amount at 3(e) above by the 
amount at 2(a) above, calculated by the Council, in 
accordance with Section 34(2) of the Act, as the 
basic amount of its council tax for the year for 

Page 11



dwellings in those parts of its area to which no 
special item relates. 

 
(g) Part of the Council's Area 

Parish of Awsworth £311.40 
Parish of Brinsley £272.18 
Parish of Cossall £230.63 
Parish of Eastwood £215.30 
Parish of Greasley £237.80 
Parish of Kimberley £246.34 
Parish of Nuthall £230.13 
Parish of Stapleford £201.77 
Parish of Trowell £274.24 
Beeston Special Expense Area £178.32 
 
being the amounts given by adding to the amount at 3(f) above 
the amounts of the special item or items relating to dwellings in 
those parts of the Council's area mentioned above divided in 
each case by the amount at 2(b) above, calculated by the 
Council, in accordance with Section 34(3) of the Act, as the basic 
amounts of its council tax for the year for dwellings in those 
parts of its area to which one or more special items relate. 

 
            
          
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



 

PART OF THE COUNCIL'S 
AREA 

VALUATION BANDS 

A               
£ 

B                  
£ 

C              
£ 

D                 
£ 

E                    
£ 

F                  
£ 

G                 
£ 

H                 
£ 

Parish of Awsworth 207.60 242.20 276.80 311.40 380.60 449.80 519.00 622.80 

Parish of Brinsley  181.45 211.70 241.94 272.18 332.66 393.15 453.63 544.36 

Parish of Cossall 153.75 179.38 205.00 230.63 281.88 333.13 384.38 461.26 

Parish of Eastwood 143.53 167.46 191.38 215.30 263.14 310.99 358.83 430.60 

Parish of Greasley 158.53 184.96 211.38 237.80 290.64 343.49 396.33 475.60 

Parish of Kimberley 164.23 191.60 218.97 246.34 301.08 355.82 410.57 492.68 

Parish of Nuthall 153.42 178.99 204.56 230.13 281.27 332.41 383.55 460.26 

Parish of Stapleford 134.51 156.93 179.35 201.77 246.61 291.45 336.28 403.54 

Parish of Trowell 182.83 213.30 243.77 274.24 335.18 396.12 457.07 548.48 

Beeston Special Expense Area 118.88 138.69 158.51 178.32 217.95 257.57 297.20 356.64 

All other parts of the Council’s Area 117.90 137.55 157.20 176.85 216.15 255.45 294.75 353.70 

 
being the amounts given by multiplying the amounts at 3(f) and 3(g) above by the number which, in the proportion set out in 
Section 5(1) of the Act, is applicable to dwellings listed in a particular valuation band divided by the number which in that 
proportion is applicable to dwellings listed in Valuation Band D, calculated by the Council, in accordance with Section 36(1) of the 
Act, as the amounts to be taken into account for the year in respect of categories of dwellings listed in different valuation bands. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

P
age 13



 
4. That it be noted for the year 2022/23, the Nottinghamshire and City of Nottingham Fire and Rescue Authority, 

Nottinghamshire County Council and the Nottinghamshire Police and Crime Commissioner are proposing the following 
amounts in precepts issued to the Council, in accordance with Section 40 of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, for 
each of the categories of dwellings shown below: 

 

PRECEPTING AUTHORITY 

VALUATION BANDS 

A               
£ 

B                  
£ 

C              
£ 

D                 
£ 

E                    
£ 

F                  
£ 

G                 
£ 

H                 
£ 

Nottinghamshire County 
Council 1,096.06 1,278.74 1,461.41 1,644.09 2,009.44 2,374.80 2,740.15 3,288.18 

Nottinghamshire Police and 
Crime Commissioner 169.50 197.75 226.00 254.25 310.75 367.25 423.75 508.50 

Nottinghamshire and City of 
Nottingham Fire and Rescue 
Authority 56.38 65.78 75.17 84.57 103.36 122.16 140.95 169.14 

 

P
age 14



 
5. That, having calculated the aggregate in each case of the amounts at 3(h) and 4 above, the Council, in accordance with 

Section 30(2) of the Local Government Finance Act 1992, hereby sets the following amounts as the amounts of council tax 
for the year 2022/23 for each of the categories of dwellings shown below: 

 

 

PART OF THE COUNCIL'S AREA 

VALUATION BANDS 

A               
£ 

B                  
£ 

C              
£ 

D                 
£ 

E                    
£ 

F                  
£ 

G                 
£ 

H                 
£ 

Parish of Awsworth 1,529.54 1,784.47 2,039.38 2,294.31 2,804.15 3,314.01 3,823.85 4,588.62 

Parish of Brinsley  1,503.39 1,753.97 2,004.52 2,255.09 2,756.21 3,257.36 3,758.48 4,510.18 

Parish of Cossall 1,475.69 1,721.65 1,967.58 2,213.54 2,705.43 3,197.34 3,689.23 4,427.08 

Parish of Eastwood 1,465.47 1,709.73 1,953.96 2,198.21 2,686.69 3,175.20 3,663.68 4,396.42 

Parish of Greasley 1,480.47 1,727.23 1,973.96 2,220.71 2,714.19 3,207.70 3,701.18 4,441.42 

Parish of Kimberley 1,486.17 1,733.87 1,981.55 2,229.25 2,724.63 3,220.03 3,715.42 4,458.50 

Parish of Nuthall 1,475.36 1,721.26 1,967.14 2,213.04 2,704.82 3,196.62 3,688.40 4,426.08 

Parish of Stapleford 1,456.45 1,699.20 1,941.93 2,184.68 2,670.16 3,155.66 3,641.13 4,369.36 

Parish of Trowell 1,504.77 1,755.57 2,006.35 2,257.15 2,758.73 3,260.33 3,761.92 4,514.30 

Beeston Special Expense Area 1,440.82 1,680.96 1,921.09 2,161.23 2,641.50 3,121.78 3,602.05 4,322.46 

All other parts of the Council’s Area 1,439.84 1,679.82 1,919.78 2,159.76 2,639.70 3,119.66 3,599.60 4,319.52 

P
age 15



T
his page is intentionally left blank



Council  13 April 2022 

 Report of the Monitoring Officer 

  

REVISED CODE OF CONDUCT AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING 

WITH CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS 

1. Purpose of Report  

To seek Council’s approval for the revised Code of Conduct and arrangements for 
dealing with Member complaints, attached at appendix A, be adopted in 
accordance with the recommendation made by Governance, Standards and Audit 
Committee on 14 March 2022.  
 
The revised Code is based on the new model Code (with local amendments) 

recently produced by the Local Government Association (LGA) following the 

recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in Public Life (CSPL).  

 

The Member and Officer working task group have revised the Code of Conduct for 

Members and the arrangement for dealing with complaints to ensure they are fit for 

purpose, provide clarity on expected behaviours and process, to promote high 

standards of conduct and trust and set out what the public can expect from their 

representatives.  

 

2. Recommendation  

Council is asked to RESOLVE that the amended Code of Conduct at appendix 

2 and arrangements at appendix 3, be APPROVED for implementation from 11 

May 2022.  

 

3. Detail  

Following consultation during 2020, the LGA published the final version of the 

model Code in January 2021. The model Code is described by the LGA as 

‘designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good conduct and safeguard 

the public’s trust in local government. 

 

The expectation is that all Councils should adopt the model Code as a minimum but 

provision for additional local variations is permitted. The amended Code of Conduct 

at appendix 2 is line with LGA’s expectation.   

 

The Council’s arrangements for dealing with Member complaints were lasted 

adopted by full Council on 11 July 2012.  The task and finish group have reviewed 

and amended the arrangements at appendix 3 to ensure they are fit for purpose, 

provide clarity on expected behaviours and process and manage and reflect public 

expectation. The complaints form for making Member complaints has been revised 

to incorporate the changes made to the arrangements. 

 

Page 17

Agenda Item 5.



Council  13 April 2022 

In line with CSPL best practice recommendations two independent persons were 

recruited in December 2021 to discharge functions in connection with the 

arrangements for dealing with Member complaints and to deal with any senior 

officer employment issues. 

 
A comprehensive training programme will be developed to ensure Members and 
Parish Councils are made aware of any approved changes before they are 
implemented. 
 

4. Financial Implications  

There will be an increase in allowances linked to appointment of two Independent 

Persons under the revised Code of Conduct of around £4,000.  This will be 

reflected in revised budgets for 2022/23.  Other costs associated with training and 

internal resources will be contained within existing budgets. 

5.  Legal Implications  

The Localism Act 2011 section 27, places the Council under a duty to promote and 

maintain high standards of conduct and to have in place a Code of Conduct for 

Members and Co-opted Members. 

 

There is no legal requirement for Council’s to adopt the LGA Model Code at this 

time. This review is however, in compliance with best practice recommended by the 

CSPL that an annual review of the Code of Conduct should be undertaken. 

  

Section 28(6) of the Localism Act 2011, also requires the Council to have in place 

arrangements under which allegations can be investigated and decisions on 

allegations can be made. 

 

The Localism Act provides that the adoption, replacement or revision of a Code and 

arrangements must be undertaken by Council.  

 

6.  Equality Impact Assessment  

         There are no direct equality implications arising from this report.   

  7.      Background Papers  

Governance, Standards and Audit Committee considered the revised Members' 

Code of Conduct and arrangements at their meeting on 14 March 2022 and made 

the recommendation to Council, as outlined in Section 2. 

 

 

Page 18



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

           APPENDIX 1 
Report of the Monitoring Officer  
 

REVIEW OF THE CODE OF CONDUCT AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR 
DEALING WITH CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS 

1. Purpose of report 

To seek approval for the amendments to the Code of Conduct and Arrangements for 

dealing with Code of Conduct complaints, prior to recommending to Council for 

adoption.  

2. Detail 

The Localism Act 2011 section 27, places the Council under a duty to promote and 

maintain high standards of conduct. In discharging this duty, the Council is required 

to adopt a Code dealing with the conduct that is expected of its Members and Co-

opted Members. Section 28(6) of the Act also requires the Council to have in place 

arrangements under which allegations can be investigated and decisions on 

allegations can be made. 

The Council’s Code of Conduct (the Code) and arrangements were last reviewed 

and adopted by Full Council on 11 July 2012.  This review’s objectives were to 

update the Code and arrangements to ensure they are fit for purpose, provide clarity 

on expected behaviours and process, to manage and reflect public expectation. 

Following consultation during 2020, the Local Government Association’s (LGA) 

published the final version of the model Code in January 2021. The model Code, and 

best practice recommendations made by the Committee on Standards in Public Life 

(CSPL) can be found on the link in the background papers. The LGA describes the 

model Code as ‘designed to protect our democratic role, encourage good conduct 

and safeguard the public’s trust in local government’. The expectation is that all 

Councils should adopt it as a minimum but provision for additional local variations is 

permitted. Further background detail is provided at Appendix 1.  

The established Member Task and Finish Group, in consultation with the Monitoring 
Officer and Deputy Monitoring Officers have put forward recommendations to adopt 
the model Code, in part with local amendments (Appendix 2), to amend and update 
the arrangements in line with the CSPL best practice recommendations at Appendix 
3, A summary of main changes can be found at Appendix 4.  
 
A comprehensive training programme will be developed to ensure Members and 
Parish Councils are aware of any approved changes. 
 

 Recommendation 
The Committee is asked to RECOMMEND the locally amended Code of Conduct 
at Appendix 2 and arrangements at Appendix 3, for adoption to Full Council, to 
be implemented from 11 May 2022.   

  

Page 19



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

3. Background papers 

 

3.1 Members Code of Conduct as approved at Council on 11 July 2012:  

https://www.broxtowe.gov.uk/media/1467/document-no-5a-the-code-of-conduct-of-

broxtowe-borough-council.pdf 

 

3.2 The Councils arrangements for dealing with Code of Conduct complaints adopted 

on 11 July 2012. 

https://www.broxtowe.gov.uk/media/8242/arrangements-for-dealing-with-

complaints-2020.pdf  

 

3.3 Standards Committee Report – 19 October 2020 CSPL Review of Ethical 

Standards in Local Government and list of Recommendations and list of Best 

Practice Report, January 2019:  

 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localgovernment-ethical-standards-

report 

 

3.4 Local Government Association Model Councillor Code of Conduct:  

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/local-government-association-model-

councillor-code-conduct-2020 

 

3.5 Guidance on Local Government Association Model Councillor Code of Conduct:   

https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-association-

model-councillor-code-conduct  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 20

https://www.broxtowe.gov.uk/media/1467/document-no-5a-the-code-of-conduct-of-broxtowe-borough-council.pdf
https://www.broxtowe.gov.uk/media/1467/document-no-5a-the-code-of-conduct-of-broxtowe-borough-council.pdf
https://www.broxtowe.gov.uk/media/8242/arrangements-for-dealing-with-complaints-2020.pdf
https://www.broxtowe.gov.uk/media/8242/arrangements-for-dealing-with-complaints-2020.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localgovernment-ethical-standards-report
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/localgovernment-ethical-standards-report
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct-2020
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct-2020
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct-2020
https://local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct#respect
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct
https://www.local.gov.uk/publications/guidance-local-government-association-model-councillor-code-conduct


Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

 

          APPENDIX 1 

Background: 

 

Code of Conduct 

 

The Localism Act 2011 abolished the previous national model Code and instead imposed 

a simple requirement that each Council put in place a Code dealing with conduct that is 

expected of Members & Co-opted Members, when they act in that capacity (s27(2)).  

Each Code must, when viewed as a whole, be consistent with the 7 Nolan Principles of 

Public Life and must contain “appropriate provisions” for the registration and disclosure of 

disclosable pecuniary interests and ‘other’ interests.  

 
During 2018 the Committee on Standards in Public Life (“CSPL”) undertook a review of 
local government ethical standards to establish how effective the current arrangements 
were in light of the changes made by the Localism Act 2011. Also in response to rising 
local government concern about the increasing incidence of public, Member to-Member 
and officer/Member intimidation and abuse and overall behavioural standards and 
expectations in public debate, decision making and engagement.   

 

The CSPL found there was considerable variation in the length, quality, and clarity of 
codes of conduct across Councils. 

 

One of the main recommendations of the CSPL was that the Local Government 
Association (LGA) should create an updated, non-mandatory, model Code of Conduct, 
which Councils could then consider either adopting in full or adapting according to their 
local circumstances. 

 

The LGA aimed to develop a code that benchmarks a standard for all public office and 
for those engaged in public discourse and debate. It aimed to set out the duties and 
expectations of persons in public office as well as their rights, particularly their right to be 
protected from abuse and intimidation resulting from their undertaking of public office. 

 

The LGA has now developed a model Member Code of Conduct, which was published in 
January 2021, in association with key partners and after extensive consultation with the 
sector, as part of its work on supporting all tiers of local government to continue to aspire 
to high standards of leadership and performance. It is a template for Councils to adopt in 
whole and/or with local amendments. 

 

The model Code, has changed slightly from the version that was consulted upon in the 

summer of 2020. Most significantly, the requirement of “civility” which was in the original 

draft has now been replaced with “respect” and additional guidance has now been 

published with the model Code. 

Page 21



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

 

There is currently no mandatory statutory requirement to adopt the model Code. Whilst 

the CSPL report indicated there “would” be a model Code, it is unclear whether the 

intention was that this would be a statutory code which would require adoption through 

amendment to the Localism Act 2011 (“the Act”). It is always going to be a challenge to 

find a model that suits all, arguably only through mandatory adoption is there likely to be 

unity by Councils in relation to a Code of Conduct.  

 

Lawyers in Local Government undertook a survey of Monitoring Officers earlier in the 

year to gauge how many had chosen to adopt the model Code following its publication in 

January 2021. A total of 82 responses were received from Monitoring Officers or Deputy 

Monitoring Officers. Of those who responded:  

• 20% indicated they would be adopting the model Code in full.   

• 20% indicated they would be adopting part of the Code.   

• 55% indicated they would not be adopting the Code.  

• 5% indicated they were undecided at this time.  

The survey responses further revealed from the 55% not adopting the Code.  

• 25% will not be adopting the model Code or changing their own Code.  

• 30% not adopting the model Code in whole or part but were looking to make 

changes to their own Code. 

  

This Committee is responsible for standards functions as set out in the constitution and 

for advising the Council on the adoption or revision of the Members’ Code of Conduct. 

The Localism Act provides that any adoption, replacement or revision of a Code must be 

undertaken by Council. The Council last updated and adopted its Member Code of 

Conduct in 11 July 2012. 

 

The Task and Finish Group, in consultation with the Monitoring Officer and Deputy 

Monitoring Officers, have considered both the Best Practice Recommendations produced 

by the CSPL and the model Code and compare it to the Council’s existing Code of 

Conduct, with a view to bringing forward recommendations, as to whether the Model 

Code should be adopted by the Council in full, or in part with local amendments. 

 

The Task and Finish Group recommend adopting the Model Code in part with local 

amendments and by removing the guidance notes. The Task and Finish Group, felt that 

the guidance contained within the Model Code was helpful, but ambiguous in parts. The 

guidance also made the Model Code too lengthy and would if adopted in full dilute the 

clear message of the Council’s Code. 

 

 

Page 22



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

Arrangement for dealing with Member Code of Conduct complaints. 

 

Section 28(6) of the Act also requires the Council to have in place arrangements under 

which allegations can be investigated and decisions on allegations can be made. 

 

CSPL report put forward the following Best Practice Recommendations be implemented 

by Councils to improve the Code of Conduct complaint handing process: 

 

Best practice 6: Councils should publish a clear and straightforward public interest 

test against which allegations are filtered.    

Best practice 7: Local authorities should have access to at least two Independent 

Persons.    

Best practice 8: An Independent Person should be consulted as to whether to 

undertake a formal investigation on an allegation, and should be given the option to 

review and comment on allegations which the responsible officer is minded to 

dismiss as being without merit, vexatious, or trivial.    

Best practice 9: Where a local authority makes a decision on an allegation of 

misconduct following a formal investigation, a decision notice should be published 

as soon as possible on its website, including a brief statement of facts, the 

provisions of the code engaged by the allegations, the view of the Independent 

Person, the reasoning of the decision-maker, and any sanction applied.    

Best practice 10: A local authority should have straightforward and accessible 

guidance on its website on how to make a complaint under the code of conduct, the 

process for handling complaints, and estimated timescales for investigations and 

outcomes.    

Best practice 11: Formal standards complaints about the conduct of a parish 

councillor towards a clerk should be made by the chair or by the parish council, 

rather than the clerk in all but exceptional circumstances.    

Best practice 13: A local authority should have procedures in place to address any 

conflicts of interest when undertaking a standards investigation. Possible steps 

should include asking the Monitoring Officer from a different authority to undertake 

the investigation.    

 

The Task and Finish Group in consultation with the Monitoring Officer and Deputy 

Monitoring Officers reviewed the Council’s current arrangement in detail over several 

meetings in 2021. The Council’s existing arrangements were also compared with other 

Council’s arrangement and Independent Person and external experts were consulted on 

the proposed amendments.  

 

The proposed amendments recommended by the Task and Finish Group implement the 

Best Practice Recommendations detailed above, and have proposed further revisions to 

the Arrangements (as set out in Appendix 3) to ensure the complaints process is fair and 

Page 23



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

effective in dealing with complaints for both the complainant and the Member being 

investigated.  

 

The Council has recruited two new Independent Persons in line with Best Practice 

Recommendations to ensure the appropriate check and challenge is in place and to 

support the effective and timely handling of Code of Conduct complaints. 

 

The assessment criteria and complaints form for dealing with Code of Conduct 

complaints, have also been amended (attached at Appendix 3), to help Complainants 

provide the necessary information required to process complaints and to reduce delays 

in requesting further information.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 24



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

 APPENDIX 2 

 

Code of Conduct of Broxtowe Borough Council  

 

Part 1: General Provisions 

 

Introduction 

This section sets out general interpretation and background to the Code of Conduct, 

including definitions used within the Code, the purpose of the Code, the principles the 

Code is based on and when the Code applies. It does not form part of the Code of 

Conduct itself and consequently does not contain any obligations for you to follow, as 

these are contained in the ‘Code of Conduct’ section below.  

All Councils are required to have a local Member Code of Conduct. 

 

Definition 

For the purposes of this Code of Conduct, a “Member” means a Member or Co-opted 

Member of Broxtowe Borough Council (‘the Council’).  

A “Co-opted Member” is defined in the Localism Act 2011 Section 27(4) as “a person 

who is not a Member of the Council but who 

a) is a Member of any committee or sub-committee of the Council, or; 

b) is a Member of, and represents the Council on, any joint committee or joint sub-

committee of the Council; 

and who is entitled to vote on any question that falls to be decided at any meeting of that 

committee or sub-committee”. 

 

Purpose of the Code of Conduct 

The purpose of this Code of Conduct is to assist you, as a Member, in modelling the 

behaviour that is expected of you, to provide a personal check and balance, and to set 

out the type of conduct that could lead to action being taken against you. It is also to 

protect you, the public, fellow Members, Council officers and the reputation of the Council 

and local government. It sets out general principles of conduct expected of all Members 

and your specific obligations in relation to standards of conduct. The fundamental aim of 

the Code is to create and maintain public confidence in the role of Member and local 

government. 

Page 25



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

You are Member or Co-opted Member of the Council and you have a responsibility to 

represent the community and work constructively with our staff and partner organisations 

to secure better social, economic and environmental outcomes for all.  

 

Application of the Code of Conduct 

The Code of Conduct has been adopted by the Council under Section 27 of the Localism 

Act 2011. 

This Code of Conduct applies to you as soon as you sign your declaration of acceptance 

of the office or attend your first meeting as Member or Co-opted Member and continues 

to apply until you cease to be a Member. 

The Code of Conduct applies to you when you are acting in your capacity as a Member 

or Co-opted Member of the Council and conduct the business of the Council (which, in 

this Code includes the business of the office to which you are elected or appointed). 

Where you act as a representative of the Council on another Council, you must, when 
acting for that other Council, comply with that other Council’s Code of Conduct. 
 
When you act as a representative of the Council on any other body, you must, when 
acting for that other body, comply with this Code of Conduct, except and insofar as it 
conflicts with any other lawful obligations to which that other body may be subject.  
 

The Code applies to all forms of communication and interaction, including: 

• at face-to-face meetings  

• at online or telephone meetings  

• in written communication  

• in verbal communication  

• in non-verbal communication  

• in electronic and social media communication, posts, statements and comments. 

You are expected to uphold high standards of conduct and show leadership at all times 

when acting as a Member. 

Your Monitoring Officer has statutory responsibility for the implementation of the Code of 

Conduct. It is your responsibility to comply with the provisions of this Code and to ensure 

all its obligations are met. You are encouraged to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer 

on any matters that may relate to the Code of Conduct, which you are unsure of. Town 

and Parish Members are encouraged to seek advice from their Clerk (who may refer 

matters to the Monitoring Officer).  

 

 

Page 26



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

General principles of Member conduct 

In accordance with the Localism Act provisions, when acting in this capacity you are 

committed to behaving in a manner that is consistent with the following Seven Principles 

of Public Life also known as the Nolan Principles set out below: These general principles 

underpin the obligations in the Code of Conduct that follows and aim to achieve best 

value for our residents and maintain public confidence in this Council: 

SEVEN PRINCIPLES OF PUBLIC LIFE: 

1. SELFLESSNESS: Holders of public office should act solely in terms of the public 
interest. 
  

2. INTEGRITY: Holders of public office must avoid placing themselves under any 
obligation to people or organisations that might try inappropriately to influence 
them in their work. They should not act or take decisions in order to gain financial 
or other material benefits for themselves, their family, or their friends. They must 
disclose and resolve any interests and relationships. 
 

3. OBJECTIVITY: Holders of public office must act and take decisions impartially, fairly 
and on merit, using the best evidence and without discrimination or bias. 
 

4.  ACCOUNTABILITY: Holders of public office are accountable for your decisions 
and you must co-operate fully with whatever scrutiny is appropriate to your office 
internally and externally, including by local residents.  
 

5. OPENNESS: Holders of public office should act and take decisions in an open and 
transparent manner. Information should not be withheld from the public unless there 
are clear and lawful reasons for so doing. 
 

6. HONESTY: Holders of public office should be truthful.  
 

7. LEADERSHIP: Holders of public office should exhibit these principles in their own 
behaviour. They should actively promote and robustly support the principles and 
be willing to challenge poor behaviour wherever it occurs. 
 

 
Part 2 – Member Code of Conduct  

General Obligations: 

 

This section sets out your obligations, which are the minimum standards of conduct 
required of you as a Councillor. Should your conduct fall short of these standards, a 
complaint may be made against you, which may result in action being taken. 

1. Respect 

1.1 You must always treat all others with respect, including the organisations, staff and 
public you engage with and those you work alongside.  

1.2 You must value colleagues and staff and engage with them in an appropriate manner 

Page 27



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

and one that underpins the mutual respect between you that is essential to good local 
government. 

 

2. Bullying, harassment and discrimination 
 

2.1 You must not do anything which may cause the Council to breach any of the     
     equality enactments. 
 

a) bully any person; 
 
b) harass any person; 
 
c) behave in an improper or offensive manner; 

d) discriminate unlawfully against any person due to their race, age, religion, 

gender, sexual orientation or disability and will promote equalities.  

 

3. Impartiality of officer of the Council 
 

3.1 You must not do anything which compromises or is likely to compromise the 
impartiality of those who work for, or on behalf of, the Council. 

 
3.2 You must deal with representations or enquiries from residents, members of our 

communities and visitors fairly, appropriately and impartially. 
 

 

4. Confidentiality and access to information 

4.1 You must not disclose information: 

a) given to you in confidence by anyone, or 

b) acquired by you which you believe, or ought reasonably to be aware, is of a 

confidential nature, unless: 

i) you have the consent of a person authorised to give it; 
 

ii) you are required by law to do so; 
 

iii) the disclosure is made to a third party for the purpose of obtaining 
professional legal advice provided that the third party agrees not to disclose 
the information to any other person; or 
 

iv) the disclosure is: 
 

1. reasonable and in the public interest; and 
 

2. made in good faith and in compliance with the reasonable requirements 

Page 28



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

of the Council. 
 

3. you have consulted the Monitoring Officer [or Clerk] prior to its release. 
 

4.2 You must not improperly use knowledge gained solely as a result of your role as a 
Councillor for the advancement of yourself, your friends, your family members, your 
employer or your business interests.  
 

4.3 You must not prevent another person from gaining access to information to     which that 

person is entitled by law. 

5. Disrepute 

5.1  You must not conduct yourself in a manner which could reasonably be regarded     as 

bringing your office or the Council into disrepute. 

 

6. Use of your position  

6.1 You must not use or attempt to use your position as a Member improperly to confer 
on or secure for yourself or any other person, an advantage or disadvantage. 

6.2 You will not place yourself under a financial or other obligation to outside individuals   
or organisations that might seek to influence you in the performance of your official 
duties. 

 

7. Use of local authority resources and facilities  

7.1 You must not misuse Council resources; 

7.2 You must, when using or authorising the use by others of the resource of the   

Council act in accordance with the Council’s reasonable requirements; 

7.2 You must ensure that such resources are not used improperly, including use  for 
political and party political purposes unless that use could reasonably be regarded 
as likely to facilitate, or be conducive to, the discharge of the functions of the 
Council or of the office to which you have been elected or appointed. 

 
8. Decision making 

8.1 When reaching decisions on any matter you must have regard to any relevant    

advice provided to you by officers of the Council acting pursuant to their statutory 

responsibilities (including a proper officer designated by the Council), or other 

professional officers of the Council, taking all relevant information into consideration, 

remaining objective and making decisions on merit 

8.2  You must give reasons for all decisions in accordance with any statutory       

requirements and any reasonable additional requirements imposed. 

Page 29



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

8.3 You must behave in accordance with all the Council’s legal obligations, alongside any 

requirements contained within this Council’s policies, protocols and procedures. 

8.4 You must not allow other pressures to unreasonably deter you from pursuing 

constituents' casework, the interests of the Council’s area or the good governance 

of the Council in a proper manner. 

 

9. Complying with the Code of Conduct 

9.1 You will undertake Code of Conduct training provided by your Council. 

9.2 You will fully cooperate with any Code of Conduct investigation and/or determination. 

9.3 You will not intimidate or attempt to intimidate any person who is likely to be involved 

with the administration of any investigation or proceedings; in relation to an allegation 

that a Member (including yourself) has failed to comply with his or her Council’s Code 

of Conduct; 

9.4  You will comply with any sanction imposed on you following a finding that you have 

breached the Code of Conduct. 

 

Protecting your reputation and the reputation of the Council 

10. Interests   

10.1 You will register and disclose your interests in accordance with the provisions set out 

in Appendix A. 

Section 29 of the Localism Act 2011 requires the Monitoring Officer to establish and 

maintain a register of interests of Members of the Council. The register is publically 

available and protects you by demonstrating openness and willingness to be held 

accountable. 

You are personally responsible for deciding whether or not you should disclose an 

interest in a meeting which allows the public, Council employees and fellow Councillors 

know which of your interests gives rise to a conflict of interest.  If in doubt you should 

always seek advice from your Monitoring Officer. 

You should note that failure to register or disclose a disclosable pecuniary interest as 

defined in Appendix A, is a criminal offence under the Localism Act 2011. 

11. Gifts and hospitality 

11.1 You will not accept gifts or hospitality, irrespective of estimated value, which could give 

rise to real or substantive personal gain or a reasonable suspicion of influence on my 

part to show favour from persons seeking to acquire, develop or do business with the 

Council or from persons who may apply to the Council for any permission, licence or 

other significant advantage. 

Page 30



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

11.2 You will register with the Monitoring Officer any gift or hospitality with an estimated 

value of at least £25 within 28 days of its receipt. 

11.3 You will register with the Monitoring Officer any significant gift or hospitality with an 

estimated value of at least £25 that you have been offered but have refused to accept 

 
12. Dispensations  

12.1 You may request a dispensation from the Monitoring Officer for one meeting only.  

12.2 You must make the request in writing detailing what my interest is, why the 
dispensation is required and for what meeting.  

12.3 You must make any request 5 days prior to the meeting at which the Dispensation is 
required.  

12.4 You must make any further requests for dispensation to the Standards Sub Hearing 
Committee.  

12.5 You will only be granted a Dispensation where there are reasonable grounds for 
doing so and where such grounds are in the public interest.  

 
Appendix A sets out the situations where a Member’s personal interest in a matter may 

prevent them from participating in the decision-making process. In certain circumstances, 

however, there may be reasonable grounds to allow a Member to participate in decision-

making on that matter where it would be in the public interest to do so. Where you consider 

that there may be good grounds for you to continue to participate you should request a 

dispensation from the Monitoring Officer. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 31



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

 

APPENDIX A 
 

 
Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 
 
1. Definitions 

 
“Disclosable Pecuniary Interest” means any interest described as such in the Relevant 
Authorities (Disclosable Pecuniary Interests) Regulations 2012 and includes an interest 
of yourself, or of your Partner (if you are aware of your Partner's interest) that falls within 
the descriptions set out in the following table. A Disclosable Pecuniary Interest is a 
Registerable Interest. 
 
“Partner” means a spouse or civil partner, or a person with whom you are living as 
husband or wife, or a person with whom you are living as if you are civil partners. 

 

Table of Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 

Subject  Prescribed description 

Employment, office, trade, profession or 
vocation 

Any employment, office, trade, 
profession or vocation carried on for 
profit or gain, which you, your spouse or 
civil partner, undertakes.  
{any unpaid directorship} 
 

Sponsorship Any payment or provision of any other 
financial benefit (other than from your 
Council) made or provided within the 
previous 12 month period in respect of 
any expenses incurred by you in 
carrying out duties as a Member, or 
towards your election expenses.  
 
This includes any payment or financial 
benefit from a trade union within the 
meaning of the Trade Union and Labour 
Relations (Consolidation) Act 1992.  
 

Any contracts Any contract which is made between 
you, your spouse or your civil partner or 
person with whom you are living with as 
spouse or civil partner (or a body in 
which you, or your spouse or your civil 
partner, has a beneficial interest) and 
the Council under which a) goods or 
services are to be provided or works are 

Page 32



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

to be executed; and b) which has not 
been fully discharged.  
 
For this purpose “body in which you or 
they have a beneficial interest” means a 
firm which the relevant person is a 
partner or a body corporate of which the 
relevant person is a partner or a body 
corporate of which the relevant person 
is a director, or in the securities of which 
the relevant person has a beneficial 
interest. “Director” includes a Member of 
the committee of management of an 
industrial and provident society.  
 

Land Any beneficial interest in which you, or 
your spouse or your civil partner, have 
and which is within the area of the 
Council.  
 
For this purpose “ Land” excludes an 
easement, servitude, interest or right in 
or over land which does not carry with it 
a right for you, your spouse, civil partner 
(alone or jointly with another) to occupy 
the land or to receive income. 

Licences  Any licences (alone or jointly with 
others) which you, or your spouse or 
your civil partner, holds to occupy land 
in the area of the Council for a month or 
longer.  
 

Corporate tenancies Any tenancy where (to your knowledge) 
a) the landlord is the Council; and b) the 
tenant is a body in which you, or your 
spouse or your civil partner or the 
person with whom the Member is living 
with, as if they were spouse/civil 
partners is a partner of or a director of 
or has a beneficial interest in the 
securities of.  

Securities 

 
 

Any beneficial interest in securities of a 
body where: (a) that body (to your 
knowledge) has a place of business or 
land in the area of the relevant Council; 
and (b) either: (i) the total nominal value 
of the securities exceeds £25,000 or 
one hundredth of the total issued share 
capital of that body; or (ii) if the share 
capital of that body is of more than one 

Page 33



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

class, the total nominal value of the 
shares of any one class in which the 
Member, or his/her spouse or civil 
partner or the person with whom the 
Member is living as if they were 
spouse/civil partners have a beneficial 
interest exceeds one hundredth of the 
total issued share capital of that class. 
 
For this purpose, “securities” mean 
shares, debentures, debenture stock, 
loan stock, bonds, units of a collective 
investment scheme within the meaning 
of the Financial Services and Markets 
Act 2000 and other securities of any 
description, other than money deposited 
with a building society.  

 

 
Note - Failure to declare a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and to take part in any 
discussion in or vote on any matter in which the Member has        a pecuniary interest 
is a criminal offence, which is punishable by a fine of up to £5,000 and 
disqualification. 

         
“Registrable Interests” are interests that you are required to register in accordance with 
this Code of Conduct and include both Disclosable Pecuniary Interests and Other 
Registerable Interests. 
 
“Other Registerable Interests” are a personal interest in any business of your Council 

which relates to or is likely to affect:  

a) any unpaid directorships 
 

b) any body of which you are in general control or management and to which you are 
nominated or appointed by your Council; or 
 

c) any body  

(i) exercising functions of a public nature 

(ii) any body directed to charitable purposes or 

(iii) one of whose principal purposes includes the influence of public opinion or 

policy (including any political party or trade union) 

of which you are a Member or in a position of general control or management. 

 

“Non-Registrable Interests” are interests that you are not required to register but need 

to be disclosed in accordance with section 3.3. 

Page 34



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

 
A “Dispensation” is agreement that you may continue to participate in the decision-
making process notwithstanding your interest as detailed at section 12 of the Code of the 
Conduct and this Appendix. 
 
A “Sensitive Interest” is as an interest which, if disclosed, could lead to the Member, or 
a person connected with the Member, being subject to violence or intimidation. In any 
case where this Code of Conduct requires to you to disclose an interest (subject to the 
agreement of the Monitoring Officer in accordance with paragraph 2.4 of this Appendix 
regarding registration of interests), you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, 
if it is a Sensitive Interest in such circumstances you just have to disclose that you have a 
Sensitive Interest under S32(2) of the Localism Act 2011. You must update the 
Monitoring Officer when the interest is no longer sensitive, so that the interest can be 
recorded, made available for inspection and published.  
 
A matter “directly relates” to one of your interests where the matter is directly about that 
interest. For example the matter being discussed is an application about a particular 
property in which you or somebody associated with you has a financial interest.  
 
A matter “affects” your interest where the matter is not directly about that interest but 
would still have clear implications for the interest. For example, the matter concerns a 
neighbouring property. 
 
2. Registering Interests  

2.1 You must, within 28 days of this Code being adopted by the Council, or taking office 

as a Member or appointed as a Co-opted Member, register all details of Disclosable 

Pecuniary Interest and Other Registerable Interests, with the Monitoring Officer. 

2.2 You must upon your re-election as a Member or your re-appointment as a Co-opted 

Member, within 28 days re-register all details of Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and 

Other Registrable Interests, with the Monitoring Officer. 

2.3 You must register any change to a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or new interest 

within 28 days of becoming aware of it. 

2.4 You must notify the Monitoring Officer where you have a Sensitive Interest, with the 

reasons why you believe it is a Sensitive Interest. If the Monitoring Officer agrees 

they will withhold the interest from the public register. 

2.5 You must observe the restrictions the Council places on your involvement in 

matters where you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest or Other Registerable 

Interest, as defined by the Council. 

 

3. Declaration at and Participation in Meetings 
 

 If you are present at a meeting and you have either a Registerable or Non-

Registerable Interest in any matter to be considered or being considered, and the 

Page 35



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

interest is not a Sensitive Interest, you must disclose that interest to the meeting 

(whether or not it is registered). 

 

To determine whether your interest affects your ability to participate in a meeting, 
you must first determine what type of interest you have and, if necessary, go on to 
apply the tests as set out below. 

 
3.1 Disclosable Pecuniary Interests 

 
3.1.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to one of your 

Disclosable Pecuniary Interests:  
 

 Action to be taken 

 you must disclose the nature of the interest at the commencement of that 
consideration, or when the interest becomes apparent, whether or not such 
interest is registered in the Council’s register of interests of Member and Co-opted 
Members or for which you have made a pending notification.  If it is a sensitive 
interest you do not have to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have 
an interest.  
 

 you must not participate in any discussion of that particular business at the 
meeting, or if you become aware of a disclosable pecuniary interest during the 
meeting you must not participate further in any discussion of the business, 
including by speaking as a member of the public. 

 

 you must not participate in any vote or further vote taken on the matter at the 
meeting and  

 

 you must withdraw from the room at this point to make clear to the public that 
you are not influencing the meeting in anyway and to protect you from the criminal 
sanctions that apply should you take part, unless you have been granted a 
Dispensation. 

 

3.2 Other Registerable Interests 
 

3.2.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to the financial interest 
or wellbeing of one of your Other Registerable Interests:  
 

Action to be taken 

 

Where a matter arises at any business of the Council, of its executive or any 

committee of the executive, or any committee, joint committee, or joint sub-

committee of the Council and you have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest relating to 

any business that is or will be considered at the meeting: 

 

 you must disclose the interest at the commencement of that consideration, or 
when the interest becomes apparent, whether or not such interest is registered in 

Page 36



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

the Council’s register of interests of Member and Co-opted Members or for which 
you have made a pending notification.  If it is a sensitive interest you do not have 
to disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.  

 you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter, but may speak 
on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the 
meeting  
 

 you must withdraw from the room unless you have been granted a 
Dispensation. 
 

3.2.2. The provisions of paragraph 3.1.1 and 3.2.1 shall be applied in such a manner as 

to recognise that this Code should not obstruct a Member’s service on more than 

one Council. For the avoidance of doubt, participation in discussion and decision 

making at one Council will not by itself normally prevent you from taking part in 

discussion and decision making on the same matter at another Council. This is on 

the basis that a reasonable member of the public will see no objection in principle 

to such service or regard it as prejudicing a Member’s judgement of the public 

interest and will only regard a matter as giving rise to a Personal Interest which 

might lead to bias in exceptional circumstances. 

3.3 Non-Registerable Interests 
 
3.3.1 Where a matter arises at a meeting which directly relates to a financial interest or 

the well-being of yourself or of a friend, relative or close associate (and is not a 
Registerable Interest):  

 
Action to be taken 

 you must disclose the interest; if it is a sensitive interest you do not have to 
disclose the nature of the interest, just that you have an interest.  
 

 you must not take part in any discussion or vote, but may speak on the matter 
only if members of the public are also allowed to speak at the meeting; and 
 

 you must withdraw from the room unless you have been granted a Dispensation. 
 

3.3.2. Where a matter arises at a meeting which does not directly relate to but affects 

a) a financial interest or the well-being of yourself or of a friend, relative or close 

associate; or 

b a financial interest or wellbeing of a body included in those you need to 

disclose under Other Registerable Interests 

Action to be taken 

 you must disclose the interest and extent of your interest including 
enough detail to allow a member of the public to understand its nature, at 

Page 37



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

the commencement of that consideration, or when the interest becomes 
apparent.  

 

In order to determine whether you can remain in the meeting after disclosing your 

interest the following test in paragraphs 3.3.3 and 3.3.4 should be applied. 

3.3.3. Where a matter under paragraph 3.3.2 affects the financial interest or well-being 

or body: 

a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests or wellbeing of the 

majority of inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision; and 

b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would believe that it 

would affect your view of the wider public interest. 

Action to be taken 

 you must not take part in any discussion or vote on the matter but may 
speak on the matter only if members of the public are also allowed to speak 
at the meeting; and 
 

 you must withdraw from the room unless you have been granted a 
Dispensation. 

 

3.3.4. Where a matter under paragraph 3.3.2 does not affect the financial interest or   

well-being or body: 

a) to a greater extent than it affects the financial interests or wellbeing of the 

majority of inhabitants of the ward affected by the decision; and/or 

b) a reasonable member of the public knowing all the facts would not believe that 

it would affect your view of the wider public interest 

Action to be taken 

 you may remain in the room,  
 

 you may speak if you wish to and take part in any discussion or  
 

 you may vote on the matter, provided you have disclosed your interest 
under paragraph 3.3.2. 

 

4.  Single-Member-Decision-Making 

4.1.  In the event that you are making a decision as a single Member the following 

section applies in relation to any interests you may have. 

4.1.1. Where you have a personal interest on a matter to be considered or is being 

considered by you as a Cabinet Member in exercise of your executive function 

(i.e., single-Member-decision-making) and the interest is: 

Page 38



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 14 March 2022 

a) A Registrable Interest; or 

b) A Non-Registrable Interest that falls under paragraph 3.3.3 above 

Action to be taken 

 you must notify the Monitoring Officer of the interest and  
 

 you must not take any steps or further steps in the matter apart from 
arranging for someone else to deal with it. 

 
4.1.2. Where you have a personal interest on a matter to be considered or is being 

considered by you as a Cabinet Member in exercise of your executive function 

(i.e. single-Member-decision-making) and the interest is a Non-Registrable 

Interest that falls under paragraph 3.3.4, 

 Action to be taken 

 you must make sure that any written statement of that decision records the 
existence and nature of your interest. 

 

Page 39



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

                             

P
age 40



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

P
age 41



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

         APPENDIX 3 

  

Broxtowe Borough Council 

Arrangements for dealing with Code of Conduct complaints 

under the Localism Act 2011 

 

1. Introduction  

These “Arrangements” set out how to make a complaint that an elected or Co-opted 
Member of Broxtowe Borough Council (“the Council”), or of a Town or Parish Council 
within the Borough of Broxtowe, has failed to comply with the Council’s Code of 
Conduct, and sets out how the Council will deal with allegations of a failure to comply 
with that Code of Conduct.  

 

Under Section 28(6) and (7) of the Localism Act 2011, the Council must have in 
place “arrangements” under which allegations that a Member or Co-opted Member of 
the Council, or of a Town or Parish Council within the Borough of Broxtowe, or of a 
Committee or Sub-Committee of the Council, has failed to comply with that Council’s 
Code of Conduct can be investigated and decisions made on such allegations.  

 

The statutory arrangements provide for the Council to appoint at least one 

Independent Person, whose views must be sought by the Council before it takes a 

decision on an allegation which it has decided shall be investigated, and whose 

views can be sought by the Council at any other stage, or by a Member or Co-opted 

Member of a Town or Parish Council within the Borough of Broxtowe, against whom 

an allegation has been made. 

 

The Council takes seriously all Code of Conduct complaints. The investigation of 

complaints will be dealt with fairly for both the Complainant and the Member of the 

complaint. 

 

These arrangements came into effect from (date to be inserted when adopted by 

Council) and were adopted by a meeting of full Council on (date to be inserted when 

adopted by Council. 

 

 

 

Page 42



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

 

2. The Code of Conduct 

The Council has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Members, which is attached as 

Appendix C to these arrangements and available for inspection on the Council’s 

website and on request from Reception at the Council Offices. 

Each Town and Parish Council is also required to adopt a Code of Conduct. This is a 

matter for each individual Council to consider.  If anyone wishes to inspect a Town or 

Parish Council’s Code of Conduct, they should visit any website operated by the 

Town or Parish Council or request the Town or Parish Clerk to allow inspection of 

the relevant Code of Conduct, as the Town and Parish Council’s may have adopted 

a different Code of Conduct than Broxtowe Borough Council 

 

3. Definitions 

The following definitions are used throughout these arrangements: 

 

Complainant The person who has raised the complaint. This 

might be a member of the public, an officer or 

another Member. 

 

Member(s) being  The Member against whom the complaint has been  

investigated  made. 

 

Independent Person The person appointed by the Council whose views 

must be sought by the Council before making a 

decision on an allegation, which is within the 

jurisdiction of the arrangements for dealing with 

Code of Conduct complaints. 

 

Monitoring Officer  A senior officer of the Council who has responsibility 

for maintaining the register of Members’ interests 

and who is responsible for administering the system 

in respect of complaints of Member misconduct and 

is the Council’s Proper Officer for such matters. 

 

Page 43



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

Member Councillor of Broxtowe Borough Council or of a 

Town or Parish Council within Broxtowe or a dual 

hatted Councillor.  

 

Co-opted Member  A person who is not a Member of the Council but 

who is a Member of any committee or sub-

committee of the Council, or is a Member of, and 

represents the Council on, any joint committee or 

joint sub-committee of the Council, and who is 

entitled to vote on any question that falls to be 

decided at any meeting of that committee or sub-

committee. 

 

Sanctions The range of actions that can be taken against a 

Member where it is concluded that they have failed 

to comply with the Code of Conduct. 

 

Informal Resolution Informal resolution may involve the Member being 

investigated accepting that their conduct was 

unacceptable and offering an apology, or other 

remedial action proposed by the Monitoring Officer.  

 

4. Making a complaint 

If you wish to make a complaint, please write to: 

The Monitoring Officer 

Broxtowe Borough Council 

Council Offices 

Foster Avenue 

Beeston 

Nottingham 

NG9 1AB 

or email: membercomplaints@broxtowe.gov.uk 

 

In order to ensure that the Monitoring Officer has all the information which is needed 

to be able to process a complaint, the correct Member Code of Conduct complaint 

form (Appendix B) should be completed. The form can be downloaded from the 

Page 44



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

Council’s website www.broxtowe.gov.uk under Member complaints and is available 

on request from reception at the Council Offices or from the Monitoring Officer. If you 

decide not to use the Member complaint form, you must still provide all of the 

information requested within it, otherwise we will not be able to progress your 

complaint until this information is provided. 

 

Help to complete the form or to make a written Member complaint is available by 

contacting the Monitoring Officer on 0115 917 3221 or by emailing 

membercomplaints@broxtowe.gov.uk.  

 

Under the Equality Act 2010, we can make reasonable adjustments to assist you if 

you have a disability that prevents you from making your complaint. We can also 

help you if English is not your first language.  

 

Parish and Town Councils as employers should have processes in place to ensure 

the fair and proper treatment of staff.  Complaints about the conduct of a Parish or 

Town Members towards a Clerk should be made by the chair or by the Parish or 

Town Council as a whole, rather than the Clerk in all but exceptional circumstances.  

 

A Complainant will be required to provide their name, a contact address and where 

possible, an email address, so that the complaint can be acknowledged and the 

Complainant kept informed of progress.  

 

The Monitoring Officer will acknowledge receipt of a complaint within 3 working days 

of receiving it and the Complainant will be kept informed of the progress of the 

complaint. 

 

5. Complaints against ‘Dual Hatted’ Members  

A ‘dual hatted’ Member is a Member of a Council and who is also a Member of 

another Council within the County.  The Member could be a serving County 

Councillor, Fire Authority Councillor, District Councillor and Town or Parish 

Councillor. 

 

Complaints against Members are received by the Monitoring Officer for and on 

behalf of the Council.  The Monitoring Officer will consider whether: 

 The complaint relates to a ‘dual hatted’ Member; 
 

Page 45

http://www.broxtowe.gov.uk/
mailto:membercomplaints@broxtowe.gov.uk


Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 The complaint clearly relates to incidents or circumstances which have 
occurred solely in that Member’s capacity as a Councillor of the Council; 

 

 That no other countywide Council is involved; and 
 

 That the conduct or actions complained of relate to possible failure to comply 
with the Member Code of Conduct. 

 

If so, the complaint shall be processed by the Monitoring Officer in accordance with 

these adopted arrangements for dealing with Member complaints. 

 

Where the complaint relates to: 

 A ‘dual hatted’ Member; 
 

 In the view of the Monitoring Officer the complaint may impact on the capacity 
of the Member as a Member of another Council; 

 

 The complaint may relate to incidents or circumstances which have occurred 
in the Member’s capacity as a Councillor of the Council and of another 
Council; 

 

 The conduct or actions complained of relate to a possible failure to comply 
with the Member Code of Conduct; and / or 

 

 The complaint or a similar complaint may also have been received by another 
Council, the Monitoring Officer shall refer the Complainant to any additional 
Council that could process the complaint and continue to deal with the 
relevant aspects of the case to be dealt with under the arrangements adopted 
by the Council. 

 

6. Confidentiality 

As a matter of fairness and natural justice, the Member being investigated should be 

told who has complained about them.  There may be occasions where the 

Complainant requests that their identity is withheld.  Such a request may be granted 

only in circumstances that the Monitoring Officer considers to be exceptional, for 

example: 

a) The Complainant suffers from a serious health condition, which may be 

adversely affected if their identity is disclosed. 

 

b) The Complainant has reasonable grounds for believing that they will be 

at risk of intimidation, victimisation or physical harm if their identity is 

disclosed. 

 

Page 46



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

c) The Complainant is an officer who works closely with the Member 

being investigated and they are afraid of the consequences to their 

employment if their identity is disclosed. 

This is not intended to be an exhaustive list.  

 

If the Monitoring Officer decides to refuse a request by the Complainant for 
confidentiality, they will offer the Complainant the option to withdraw the complaint, 
rather than proceed with disclosure of the Complainant’s identity. If the Complainant 
withdraws the complaint their identify and the nature of the complaint will not be 
shared with the Member being investigated.   

 

If, however the Monitoring Officer considers that disclosure of details of the 
complaint to the Member being investigated might prejudice the investigation, the 
Monitoring Officer can agree to delay notifying the Member being investigated until 
consideration of the complaint has progressed sufficiently. Any such decision to 
withhold details of the complaint should be taken only where the Monitoring Officer 
considers that exceptional grounds exist which make this necessary. 

 

The Council will not normally investigate anonymous complaints, unless there is a 

clear public interest in doing so. 

 

7. Conflict of Interest 

Where the Monitoring Officer considers they may have a conflict of interest, for 

example, as a result of a close professional relationship with the Member being 

investigated, the Monitoring Officer will pass the complaint to the Deputy Monitoring 

Officer to deal with.  Where the Deputy Monitoring Officer similarly has a conflict of 

interest, arrangements may be made for a Monitoring Officer from another local 

Council in Nottinghamshire to oversee and manage the complaint.  

 

8. What will happen to the complaint? 

There are 4 stages to dealing with complaints that are received as detailed below. 

 

Opportunities are provided throughout these arrangements to enable informal 

resolution between the Complainant and the Member being investigated.   

 

The Complainant can at any time request to withdraw a complaint, however the 

Monitoring Officer may decide that it remains in the public interest to continue to 

pursue the complaint through the process. 

Page 47



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

 

 

Stage 1 – Initial Intake Test and Initial consideration of complaint  

 

The Monitoring Officer will review every complaint received against the assessment 

criteria attached at Appendix A. If the complaint fails one or more of the initial intake 

tests (set out in the assessment criteria) the complaint will not be progressed. The 

Complainant will be informed that the complaint has been rejected and No Further 

Action will be taken, with the exception of complaints which fall under 7 and 8 above, 

which may be progressed for assessment after the date the other process has been 

completed or after the election.   

 

If the complaint passes the initial intake test the Monitoring Officer will normally 

inform the Member being investigated (unless the exceptions set out in section 6 

above apply) of the complaint within 5 working days of receiving the fully completed 

complaint form, or if the complaint form is not used, on receiving all the information 

requested within the complaint form in writing. 

 

The Member being investigated will be invited to send their written comments within 

7 working days (or such longer or shorter period as the Monitoring Officer may 

agree) and the Member being investigated will be notified of their right to consult the 

Independent Person.  At the same time the Monitoring Officer will write to the 

Independent Person with details of the allegations so that they may be aware of the 

nature of the complaint in case the Monitoring Officer or the Member being 

investigated wishes to consult the Independent Person at this stage. The written 

representations from the Member being investigated will be taken into account when 

deciding how the complaint will be dealt with.  

 

Subject to the exception set out in the next paragraph, the Monitoring Officer will 

always seek informal resolution in the first instance.  If this resolves the matter, the 

Monitoring Officer will formally write to the Complainant and the Member being 

investigated.  

 

If the complaint identifies criminal conduct or breach of other regulation by any 

person, the Monitoring Officer has the power to call in the Police and other regulatory 

agencies.  If the complaint refers to failure to comply with the requirement to register 

a disclosable pecuniary interest, then the matter will be referred direct to the Police 

(Localism Act, Chapter 20 Part 1, Chapter 7, Section 34 – Offences).  

Page 48



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

When the Member being investigated is provided with details of the complaint they 

should keep this matter confidential, save that: 

a) They may disclose all or any part of the complaint to their group Leader 
 

b) They may disclose all or any part of the complaint to their professional 
association for the purposes of obtaining advice 
 

c) They may disclose all or any part of the complaint to their solicitors for the 
purposes of obtaining legal advice 
 

d) The group leader may nominate another Councillor to act as support for the 
Member being investigated, and any or all details of the complaint may be 
disclosed to that Councillor. Any Councillor who is appointed as a supporter 
by their group Leader should keep the material they receive confidential. 

 

Complainants are asked to treat the complaint confidential whilst the matter is being 

investigated.  

 

Stage 2 – Formal consideration of complaint 

 

If informal resolution is not achieved, or not considered appropriate, the Monitoring 

Officer will consult with the Independent Person before progressing with the 

complaint. 

 

The Monitoring Officer will then take a decision as to whether the complaint merits 

investigation.  

 

This decision will normally be taken within 10 working days of the conclusion of 

stage one.  When the Monitoring Officer has taken a decision, they will inform the 

Complainant and the Member being investigated in writing of their decision and the 

reasons for that decision.   

 

Where the Monitoring Officer requires additional information in order to come to a 

decision, they may go back to the Complainant for such information, and may 

request information from the Member being investigated.  Where the complaint 

relates to a Town or Parish Councillor, the Monitoring Officer may also seek the 

views of the Town or Parish Council before deciding whether the complaint merits 

formal investigation.  

 

Page 49



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

In circumstances where the provision of this information leads to the time period for 

the compliance with this stage being extended the Monitoring Officer should, notify 

the Complainant and the Member being investigated of the period required to make 

a decision on this stage. 

 

The Monitoring Officer may again seek to resolve by informal resolution, without the 

need for a formal investigation.  If this resolves the matter, the Monitoring Officer will 

formally write to the Complainant and the Member being investigated to confirm that 

the matter is closed. 

 

Where the Member being investigated makes a reasonable offer of informal 

resolution, the Complainant will be asked for their views but if they are not willing to 

accept the informal resolution offered, the final decision will be the Monitoring 

Officer’s, in consultation with the Independent Person, who will take account of this 

in deciding whether the complaint merits formal investigation. 

 

In reaching their decisions on the complaint at Stages 1 and 2 the Monitoring 

Officer and the Independent Person will need to consider the assessment 

criteria outlined at Appendix A. 

 

Stage 3 - Investigation 

 

The following procedure will be used for the investigation of misconduct complaints. 

 

Investigating Officer 

 

If the Monitoring Officer, in consultation with the Independent Person, decides that a 

complaint merits formal investigation, the Monitoring Officer will appoint an 

Investigating Officer, who may be another senior officer of the Council, an officer of 

another Council or an external investigator.  The Monitoring Officer may also write to 

the Town or Parish Council and ask them to produce a statement report providing 

supporting evidence, statements, information and copies of relevant documentation. 

The Investigating Officer should normally be appointed within 7 working days of the 

decision being taken that the complaint merits investigation at this stage. The identity 

of the Investigating Officer should be notified to the Complainant and the Member 

being investigated in writing as soon as they are appointed. 

 

The investigation process 

Page 50



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

The Investigating Officer will decide whether they need to meet or speak to the 

Complainant to understand the nature of the complaint, to gain an understanding of 

events, to decide what additional documents need to be seen, and who else needs 

to be interviewed. 

 

The Investigating Officer will write to the Member being investigated again and 

(unless the exception in section 6 still applies) provide them with a copy of the 

complaint, and ask the Member to provide their explanation of events, to identify 

what documents the Investigating Officer needs to see and who they need to 

interview.  

 

In exceptional cases, where it is appropriate to keep the Complainants identity 

confidential or disclosure of details of the complaint to the Member might prejudice 

the investigation, the Monitoring Officer may delete their name and address from the 

papers given to the Member being investigated, or delay notifying the Member until 

the investigation has progressed sufficiently. 

 

The Investigating Officer should complete their investigation as soon as possible and 

where possible within 20 working days. If the Investigating Officer is not able to 

complete their investigation within that time they should write to both the 

Complainant and the Member being investigated to explain the reason for the delay 

and to give them a new target date for the completion of the investigation. 

 

The investigation report 

 

At the end of their investigation and within 10 working days thereafter, the 

Investigating Officer will produce a draft report and will send copies of that draft 

report, in confidence, to the Complainant and to the Member being investigated, to 

give both an opportunity to identify any matter in that draft report which they disagree 

with or which they consider requires more consideration. The Complainant and 

Member being investigated should respond within 7 working days.  The Investigating 

Officer should within 7 working days of having received and taken account of any 

comments which they may make on the draft report, will send their final report to the 

Monitoring Officer. 

 

The Monitoring Officer will review the Investigating Officer’s report and, if they are 

satisfied that the Investigating Officer’s report is sufficient, the Monitoring Officer will 

write to the Complainant and the Member being investigated and give all a copy of 

Page 51



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

the Investigating Officer’s final report within 7 working days.  If the Monitoring Officer 

is not satisfied that the investigation has been conducted properly, they may ask the 

Investigating Officer to reconsider their report within 10 working days. If an extension 

to this time is required throughout the investigation process, the Complainant and 

Member being investigated will be informed.  

 

 

Conclusion – no failure to comply 

 

If the report concludes that there is insufficient evidence to make a finding for a 

failure to comply with the Code of Conduct, and the Monitoring Officer is satisfied 

with the content of the report, then all relevant parties (the Complainant, Member 

being investigated and the Independent Person) will be notified in writing and the 

matter will be closed. 

 

Conclusion – failure to comply 

 

If the report concludes that there is sufficient evidence to make a finding that there 

has been a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Monitoring Officer will 

review the Investigating Officer’s report and will then consult with the Independent 

Person.  The Monitoring Officer will again seek informal resolution, however if this 

does not resolve the matter, the complaint will be listed for a hearing before the 

Standards Hearing Sub Committee. 

 

Informal Resolution 

 

The Monitoring Officer may consider that the matter can reasonably be resolved 

without the need for a hearing.  In such a case, the Monitoring Officer will consult 

with the Independent Person, the Complainant and with the Member being 

investigated and seek agreement on what is considered to be a fair resolution which 

also helps to ensure higher standards of conduct for the future.  Such resolution may 

include the Member accepting that their conduct was unacceptable and offering an 

apology, and/or other remedial action considered appropriate by the Monitoring 

Officer or the Standards Hearing Sub Committee.  If the Member complies with the 

suggested resolution, the Monitoring Officer will take no further action.  The 

Monitoring Officer’s decision is final. 

 

Stage 4 –Standards Hearing Sub Committee  

Page 52



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

If the report concludes that there has been a failure to comply and the Monitoring 

Officer considers that informal resolution is not appropriate or that informal resolution 

has failed to resolve the matter the Monitoring Officer in consultation with the Chair 

(in their absence Vice Chair) of the Governance, Audit and Standards Committee will 

convene a Standards Hearing Sub Committee.  The Monitoring Officer will report the 

Investigating Officer’s report to the Standard Hearing Sub Committee, which will 

conduct a local hearing before deciding whether the Member being investigated has 

failed to comply with the Code of Conduct and, if so, whether to take any action in 

respect of the breach. 

 

The Standards Hearing Sub Committee  

 

The Standards Hearing Sub Committee will comprise of 5 elected Members . The 

Standards Hearing Sub Committee should, at all times, be advised by the Monitoring 

Officer or their representative. The Standard Hearing Sub Committee meeting should 

be convened as soon as possible and where possible within 20 working days of the 

Monitoring Officer announcing their decision that such a meeting is necessary.  

 

The Independent Person is invited to attend all hearings by the Standards Hearing 

Sub Committee and their views are sought and taken into consideration before the 

Standards Hearing Sub Committee takes any decision on whether the Member’s 

conduct constitutes a failure to comply with the Code of Conduct and as to any 

recommended action to be taken following a finding of failure to comply with the 

Code of Conduct. 

 

Hearings will usually be held in public, unless there are exceptional reasons for it not 

being, in accordance with section 6 above. 

 

Procedures for Hearings 

 

At least 5 working days prior to the meeting of the Standards Hearing Sub 

Committee the Monitoring Officer will ask the Member being investigated to identify 

in writing what aspects of the Investigating Officers report are accepted and what are 

in dispute. The purpose of this is to identify what is likely to be agreed and what is 

likely to be in contention at the hearing. In addition, the Chair (or in their absence the 

Vice Chair) of the Standards Hearing Sub Committee may issue directions as to the 

manner in which the hearing will be conducted, but before doing so will give the 

Member being investigated the opportunity to make representations on any 

Page 53



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

proposed directions. Any directions given will be for the purpose of ensuring a fair 

and effective hearing. 

 

At the hearing, the Investigating Officer will present their report, call such witnesses, 

as they consider necessary and make representations to substantiate their 

conclusion that there is evidence that the Member being investigated has failed to 

comply with the Code of Conduct.  For this purpose, the Investigating Officer may 

ask the Complainant to attend and give evidence to the Standards Hearing Sub 

Committee.  The Member being investigated will then have an opportunity to give 

their evidence, to call witnesses and to make representations to the Standards 

Hearing Sub Committee, as to why they consider that they did not fail to comply with 

the Code of Conduct. The Member being investigated, the Investigating Officer, the 

Monitoring Officer (or their representative(s) directly through the Chair of the 

Standards Hearing Sub Committee will have the opportunity to ask questions of any 

witness called by the other party. The Standards Hearing Sub Committee can also 

question witnesses. 

 

Although, the meeting will be in public unless exceptional circumstances arise the 

discussion of the Standards Hearing Sub Committee, as to what conclusion they 

reach will be in private. The Standards Hearing Sub Committee may be assisted by 

an administrative officer (usually the Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person) 

but the Investigating Officer and the Member being investigated must not be present 

during those discussions. 

 

In reaching a decision the Standards Hearing Sub Committee will reach a decision 

by majority vote, with the material being evaluated on the balance of probabilities.   

 

Conclusion – no failure to comply 

 

The Standards Hearing Sub Committee, with the benefit of any advice from the 

Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person, may conclude that the Member 

being investigated did not fail to comply with the Code of Conduct, and so dismiss 

the complaint.  

 

Conclusion – failure to comply 

 

If the Standards Hearing Sub Committee, concludes that the Member being 

investigated did fail to comply with the Code of Conduct, the Chair will inform the 

Member being investigated of this finding and Standards Hearing Sub Committee will 

Page 54



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

then consider what action, if any, it should take or recommend as a result of the 

Member’s failure to comply with the Code of Conduct. 

 

In doing this, the Standards Hearing Sub Committee will give the Member being 

investigated an opportunity to make representations and will consult the Independent 

Person, but will then decide what action, if any, to take in respect of the matter. 

 

The announcement of the conclusion reached by the Standards Hearing Sub 

Committee must be in public, as will the opportunity for the Member being 

investigated to make any representations, if necessary. However, the decision as to 

what sanction to recommend must be in private. Neither the Investigating Officer nor 

the Member being investigated must be present during those discussions. 

 

At the end of the hearing, the Chair will state the decision of the Standards Hearing 

Sub Committee, as to whether the Member being investigated failed to comply with 

the Code of Conduct and as to any actions which the Standards Hearing Sub 

Committee resolves to take or recommend.  As soon as reasonably practicable 

thereafter, the Monitoring Officer shall prepare a formal decision notice in 

consultation with the Chair of the Standards Hearing Sub Committee, and send a 

copy to the Complainant, to the Member being investigated and to the Town or 

Parish Council where applicable.  The Decision Notice will be made available for 

public inspection through the Council website. 

 

9. Sanctions 

 

The Council has delegated to the Monitoring Officer and to the Standards Hearing 

Sub Committee, such of its powers to recommend action in respect of individual 

Members as may be necessary to promote and maintain high standards of conduct.  

Accordingly, the Monitoring Officer and Standards Hearing Sub Committee may: 

 

1. Publish its findings in respect of the conduct of the Member being 
investigated; 

 

2. Report its findings to the relevant Town or Parish Council, if appropriate;  
 

3. Report its findings to Council for information; 
 

4. Recommend to Council that the Member being investigated be censured 
for the breach of the Code of Conduct; 

Page 55



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

5. Recommend to the group Leader that the Member being investigated be 
removed from any or all Committees or Sub-Committees of the Council;  

 
6. Recommend to the Leader that the Member being investigated be 

removed from Cabinet, or removed from particular Portfolio 
responsibilities;  

 
7. Recommend to Council that the Member being investigated be removed 

or any Chair or Vice-Chair that he or she holds; 
 
8. Recommend to Council that the Leader or Deputy Leader be removed 

from Cabinet or removed from particular Portfolio responsibilities; 
 
9. Instruct the Monitoring Officer to [or recommend that the Town or Parish 

Council] arrange training for the Member being investigated; 
 
10. Recommend to Council to remove [or recommend to the Town or Parish 

Council that the Member being investigated be removed] the Member 
being investigated from any or all outside appointments to which they 
have been appointed or nominated by the Council [or by the Town or 
Parish Council]. 

 
11. Remove [or recommend to the Parish or Town Council concerned that it 

removes] the Member being investigated from the Council’s Offices or 
other premises with the exception of meeting rooms, as necessary for 
attending Council, Cabinet, Committee and Sub-Committee Meetings; at 
the discretion of the Standards Hearing Sub Committee for a maximum of 
12 months. 

 

NB. There is no power to suspend or disqualify the Member or to withdraw a 

Member’s basic or special responsibilities allowance. Although, basic or special 

responsibility allowance will not be paid if the Member is no longer entitled, as a 

result of being removed from the Cabinet, portfolio responsibilities, committee, Chair 

or Vice Chair position.  

 

10. Who is the Independent Person? 

 

The Independent Person is a person who has applied for the post following 

advertisement, and is then appointed by a positive vote from a majority of all the 

Members of Council.  The Localism Act 2011 sets a number of criteria for the 

recruitment of the Independent Person and these can be found on Part 1, Chapter 7, 

Section 28.  

 

Page 56



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

Any changes to the appointment of the Independent Person must be in line with the 

recruitment processes outlined in the Localism Act 2011 and agreed by a positive 

majority of full Council. 

 

11. Failure to co-operate with the complaint process 

 

Failure by the Complainant or Member being investigated or witnesses to take part in 

the complaint process will be taken into consideration throughout the assessment 

and investigation stages.  If the Complainant, Member being investigated or 

witnesses fails to respond to requests for information throughout the process, one 

reminder will be sent in the interest of fairness to allow for this information to be 

provided. If there is still no response the complaint will be progressed without any 

further delay.   

 

The Monitoring Officer or their representative and or investigation may exercise their 

discretion to allow a further opportunity to respond, if they consider exceptional 

circumstances apply. 

  

12. Revision of these arrangements  

 

The Chair of the Standards Hearing Sub Committee may, following consultation with 

the Monitoring Officer and Independent Person, depart from the procedures detailed 

herein where he/she considers it is necessary to do so in order to secure the 

effective and fair consideration of any matter. 

 

The Council may by resolution agree to amend these arrangements.  

 

13. Appeals 

 

There is no right of appeal either as the Complainant or the Member being 

investigated against a decision of the Monitoring Officer or their representative or of 

the decision of the Standards Hearing Sub Committee. 

If it is felt that the Council has failed to deal with the complaint properly, you may 

make a complaint to the Local Government Ombudsman (www.lgo.org.uk).  

 

14. “In Writing” 

Page 57

http://www.lgo.org.uk/


Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

Any requirement in these arrangements that information is provided in writing may 

be satisfied by that information being provided electronically, unless there is an 

Equality Act reason for the information to be in a physical form. 

  

Page 58



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

APPENDIX A 

 

ASSESSMENT CRITERIA 

 

In reaching their decisions on the complaint at Stage 1 and 2 the Monitoring Officer 

(or substitute decision makers specified under section 7 ‘conflict of interest’ 

provisions) and the Independent Person will need to consider the following 

assessment criteria: 

 

Stage One: Initial Intake Test:  

 

The Monitoring Officer must be satisfied that the complaint meets the following 

requirements: - 

 

1. The complaint is against one or more named Member or Co-opted Member of 
the Council or a Parish or Town Council within their jurisdiction; 

 

2. The named Member or Members were in Office at the time of the alleged 
conduct and the Code of Conduct was in force at the time; and 

 

3. The named Member or Members were acting in their official capacity when the 
alleged conduct took place. 

 

4. The Complainant has given their name and contact details (unless the 
Monitoring Officer considers there is a clear public interest in proceeding with 
the anonymous complaint) 
 

5. The complaint is an allegation under the Code of Conduct rather than 
dissatisfaction of a Council’s service, decision or a statement of policy 
disagreement.  
 

6. The complaint is about events that occurred within the last 3 months unless 
the Monitoring Officer considers there are exceptional grounds for the delay 
presented by the Complainant when submitting the complaint. 

  

7. The complaint is not being dealt with by the police, Ombudsman or another 
complaint process (in this case the complaint will not be assessed until after 
the other process has been completed).  
 

Page 59



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

8. The complaint is not being made about the Member or Co-opted Member 
within 6 weeks prior to an election day (if the complaint is within the 6 week 
period the complaint will not be assessed until after the election outcome has 
been announced).   

 

If the complaint fails one or more of these tests it will not be progressed and the 

Complainant will be informed that the complaint has been rejected and No Further 

Action will be taken, with the exception of complaints which fall under 7 or 8 above, 

which may be progressed for assessment after the date the other process has been 

completed or after the election.   

 

The Member being complained of will normally be informed of the complaint, subject 

to the Complainant providing consent to share their complaint.  

 

Onward referrals:  

 

The Monitoring Officer will advise the Complainant if their complaint needs to be 

referred elsewhere eg when: 

 

a) The complaint is alleging conduct relating to election/political campaigning 
activities as these are outside the remit of the Members Code of Conduct 
and will not be assessed for further action.  Potential election offences 
should be reported to the Police or the Electoral Commission. 

 

b) Complaints allege that Members may have committed a criminal offence in 
breaching the “disclosable pecuniary interest‟ provisions under Section 34 
of the Localism Act 2011, will be referred by the Monitoring Officer to 
Nottinghamshire Police for consideration. 

 

c) Complainants will be redirected to the whistling blowing policy where 
considered necessary.  

 

This list is not exhaustive. 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 60



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

STAGE 1 and STAGE 2  considerations:  

 

The Monitoring Officer and Independent Person (or substitute decision makers 

specified under section 7 ‘conflict of interest’ provisions) will consider the following 

when considering what action to take in respect of the complaint:  

 

1. The extent to which the Member being investigated is alleged to have failed to 

treat others with respect; 

2. Whether the allegations relates to bullying, harassment, intimidating or 

attempting to intimidate a person involved in an allegation against a Member 

being investigated; 

3. Whether in disclosing confidential information the Member being investigated 

failed to take or to heed advice; 

4. The implications for the public perception or the reputation of the Council; 

5. Whether the continuing pattern of behaviour being complained about is likely to 

bring the Council into disrepute, and or significantly and unreasonably disrupts 

the business of the Council, and there is no appropriate alternative informal 

resolution other than to investigate. 

6. The implications of the misconduct on staff relations and other Members; 

7. The seniority or position of influence of the Member being investigated and 

public trust or confidence; 

8. The extent to which the Member being investigated is alleged to have acted in 

a way that may cause the Council to breach an equality enactment; 

 

9. The consequences or the likely consequences of the Members being 
investigated alleged actions; 

 

10. The extent to which the Member being investigated is alleged to have used his 
or her position as a Member improperly to confer or secure an advantage or 
disadvantage; 

 

11. The extent to which the Member being investigated is alleged to have misused 
or abused the resources of the Council; 

 

12. The detriment caused by acting against advice when reaching decisions; 
 

13. The extent to which a failure to register or to declare interests resulted from a 
failure or refusal to seek or to follow advice; 

 

Page 61



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

14. Whether the matter of the complaint has already been the subject of a previous 
investigation or of an investigation by another regulator, e.g. the Local 
Government Ombudsman or the District Auditor, or the subject of proceedings 
in court; 

 

A DECISION TO TAKE NO FURTHER ACTION 

 

Reasons for taking No Further Action include: 

 

 
1. That the subject matter of the allegation is outside the jurisdiction of the 

Standards Hearing Sub Committee; eg the complaint is an allegation about 
dissatisfaction of a Council’s service, decision or a statement of policy 
disagreement or breach of the standing orders etc. 

 
2. That the allegation does not appear to disclose a failure by the Member to 

comply with the Member’s Code of Conduct when acting in that capacity; 
 
3. Whether the complaint is about something that happened so long ago that 

there would be little public benefit in taking action now. The Monitoring Officer 
will normally reject a complaint where the last event complained of took place 
more than 3 months prior to the date of the complaint or where those involved 
are unlikely to remember the event/s or incident/s clearly enough to provide 
credible evidence.  

 
4. The matter of complaint or a substantially similar allegation has already been 

the subject of a previous investigation or of an investigation by another 
regulator or the subject of proceedings in court and there is nothing more to 
be gained by a further action being taken. 

 
5. Whether the complaint appears to be simply malicious, vexatious, politically 

motivated, relatively minor, too trivial, insufficiently serious or tit-for-tat to 
warrant further action. 
 

6. Where the resources needed to investigate are wholly disproportionate to the 
allegations and or there is no overriding public interest in carrying out an 
investigation. Public interest is regarded as ‘something which is of serious 
concern and benefit to the public’. 
 

7. Whether there is enough information currently available to justify a decision to 
refer the matter for investigation or to seek an informal resolution; 
 

8. The information submitted by the Complainant is insufficient to enable the 
Monitoring Officer and the Independent Person to come to a firm conclusion 
on the matter and as such it is unlikely that an investigation will be able to 
come to a firm conclusion on the matter and or where independent evidence 
is likely to be difficult or impossible to obtain. 

Page 62



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

9. It is considered that the Member being investigated has offered a satisfactory 
remedy to the Complainant (for example by apologising). 
 

10. Whether the Monitoring Officer considers the matter is suitable for informal 
resolution and the Member being investigated is amenable to such an 
approach. 
 

11. The complaint is about someone who has died, resigned, is seriously ill or is 
no longer a Member of the Council concerned and therefore it is not in the 
public interest to pursue. 
 

12. The complaint is anonymous; The Monitoring Officer will not usually 
investigate anonymous complaints unless there is a clear public interest in 
doing so.  

  

Page 63



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

          APPENDIX B 

 

MEMBER CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINT FORM 

 

To: The Monitoring Officer 

Broxtowe Borough Council  

Foster Avenue, 

Beeston,  

Nottingham 

NG9 1AB 

 

Your details 

 

1. Please provide us with your name and contact details: 
 

Title:  

First name:  

Last name:  

Address:  

Daytime telephone:  

Evening telephone:  

Mobile telephone:  

Email address:  

Date Complaint 

submitted 

 

 

Page 64



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

Your address and contact details will not usually be released unless necessary 

or to     deal with your complaint. 

However, we will tell the following people that you have made this complaint: 

 

 the Member(s) you are complaining about  

 the Monitoring Officer of the Council  

 the Council’s Independent Person  

 officers involved in investigation or informal resolution (if applicable) 
 

We will tell them your name and give them a summary of your complaint. We 

will give      them full details of your complaint where necessary or appropriate to 

be able to deal with it. If you have serious concerns about your name and a 

summary, or details of your complaint being released, please complete section 

7 of this form to request your details are treated as ‘Confidential’. 

 

2. Please tell us which Complainant type best describes you: 

□ Member of the public 

□ An elected or co-opted Member a Council, Town or Parish Council, 

please specify which Council  

□ Local Council Monitoring Officer 

□ Other Council officer or Council employee 

□ Other, please specify 

 

Equality Monitoring 

 

The Council’s Equality Monitoring Questionnaire is attached at the end of the form. 

The completion of this form is voluntary and any information will be treated as 

confidential, and will not be disclosed when your complaint is considered. 

 

Making your complaint – Initial Intake test 

 

Page 65



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

3. The Assessment Criteria (in the local arrangements for dealing with Code of 
Conduct complaints) sets out an initial intake test that is applied to Member and 
Co-opted Member complaints.  Please answer the questions below so your 
complaint can be checked against the initial intake test, which requires your 
complaint to meet the following requirements: 

 

1. Is the complaint against one or more named Member or Co-opted 

Member of the Council or a Parish or Town Council within their 

jurisdiction? 

Yes, please provide necessary detail below; 

No 

 

Not sure 

 

2. The named Member or Members were in Office at the time of the alleged 

conduct and the Code of Conduct was in force at the time; 

Yes 

No 

 

Not sure 

 

3 The named Member or Members were acting in their official capacity 

when the alleged conduct took place. 

Yes 

No 

 

Not sure 

 

4. Have you given your name and contact details at the top of the form. 

 

Yes 

No, if not please complete the request for confidentiality under section 

     7  

 

1.  

 

 

2.  

3.  

 

4.  

5.  

 

 

 

Page 66



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

An exception not to disclose your identity must be applied for ( further 

details on requests for ‘Confidentially’ can be found under section 6 of the 

arrangements for dealing with Code of Conduct complaints) under section 

7 of this form, if you are not providing your details. 

Please note, the Council will not normally investigate anonymous 

complaints, unless there is a clear public interest in doing so. 

 

5. Is the complaint is an allegation under the Code of Conduct rather than 

dissatisfaction of a Council’s service, decision or a statement of policy 

disagreement.  

Yes 

No 

 

6. Is the complaint about events that occurred within the 

last 3 months? 

Yes 

No 

If you have any exceptional reasons why you were not able to make this 

complaint earlier, please provide details in the box below:  

 

  

 

7. Is the complaint being dealt with by the police, Ombudsman or another 

complaint process (in this case the complaint will not be assessed until 

after the other process has been completed)? 

Yes the complaint is being dealt with by another process 

No 

If you answered yes above, please provide detail in the table below of which 

other organisation is dealing with the issues complained of and a contact name 

and number of the person progressing this matter, if know, and the stage the 

matter has progressed to: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 67



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

  

8. Is the complaint being made about the Member within 6 weeks prior to an 
election day (if the complaint is within the 6 week period the complaint will 
not be assessed until after the election outcome has been announced. 

 

Yes  

No 

 

If you answered yes above please provide detail in the table below: 

 

  

 

N.B Please note, if the complaint fails one or more of these tests it will not be 

progressed and the Complainant will be informed that the complaint has been 

rejected and No Further Action will be taken, with the exception of complaints 

which fall under 7 and 8 above, which may be progressed for assessment after 

the date  the other process has been completed or after the election outcome.   

 

The Member being complained of will normally be informed of the of the nature of 

the complaint and your details unless an exception under the confidentially section 

has been agreed.  

 

4. Please provide us with the name of the Member(s) or Co-opted Member(s) 
you believe have breached  the Code of Conduct and the name of their 
Council: 

 

 

Title 

 

First name 

 

Last name 

 

Council name 

    

    

    

    

 

 

Page 68



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

 

5. Please explain in this section (or on separate sheets) what the Member 
has done that you believe breaches the Code of Conduct. If you are 
complaining about more than one Member you should clearly explain 
what each individual person (preferably on separate complaint forms for 
each Member or Co-opted Member) has done and how you believe this 
breaches the Code of Conduct. 

 

It is important that you provide with this complaint form, all the information 

you wish to have taken into consideration and for a decision to be made on  

whether to take any action on your complaint. For example: 

 You should be specific, wherever possible, about exactly what you are alleging 
the Member said or did and what part of the Code you say they failed to 
comply with. For instance, instead of writing that the Member insulted you, 
you should state what it was they said. 

 

 You should provide the dates of the alleged incidents wherever possible. If 
you cannot provide exact dates it is important to give a general timeframe. 

 

 You should confirm whether there are any witnesses to the alleged conduct 
and provide their names and contact details if possible. 

 

 You should provide any relevant background information and include copies of 
any documents, photographs or other records you are relying on. 

 

Page 69



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

Please provide us with details of your complaint. Continue on a separate sheet 

if there is not enough space on this form.  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 70



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

6. Please indicate which paragraphs of the Code of Conduct you 
consider  the Member(s) or Co-opted Member to have breached by 
ticking the appropriate box(es). 

 

Code of Conduct 
Obligation 
 

Tick if you 
consider this 
obligation was 
breached 

How did the Member breach this 
obligation 

1. Respect   

2. Bullying, harassment and 
discrimination 

  

3. Impartiality of officers of 
the Council 

  

4.Confidentiality and access 
to information 

  

5. Disrepute   

6. Use of position   

7. Use of Council resources 
and facilities 

 . 

8. Making decisions   

9. Complying with the Code 
of Conduct 

  

10. Interests   

11. Gifts and hospitality   

12. Dispensations   

 

The Code of Conduct is available on the Council’s website in Chapter 5a of the 
Council’s Constitution www.broxtowe. gov.uk/constitution or online in the local 
arrangements for dealing with Member Code of Conduct complaints under the 
complaints section under Member complaints or from the Monitoring Officer at the 
above address. 

 

7. Confidentiality  

 

Only complete this next section if you are requesting that your identity is 

kept  confidential. 

 

 In the interests of fairness and natural justice, we believe Members who are 

complained about have a right to know who has made the complaint. We also  

believe they have a right to be provided with a summary of the complaint. We  

are unlikely to withhold your identity or the details of your complaint unless you 

provide us with an explanation of the exceptional reason why you think your 

details and/or identity should be kept confidential. More details of what may be 

considered to be exceptional circumstances are set out in our arrangement for 

Code of Conduct complaints, which can be found on the Council website under 

Page 71



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

Councillor Complaints. 

 

A request for confidentially should be made when submitting this complaint form, 

to allow time for proper consideration of this request.  

 

Please note that requests for confidentiality or requests for suppression of 

complaint details will not automatically be granted. If your request for 

confidentiality is not granted, we will usually allow you the option of withdrawing 

your complaint. 

 

However, it is important to understand that in certain exceptional circumstances 

where the matter complained about is very serious, we can proceed with an 

investigation or other action and disclose your name even if you have expressly 

asked us not to. 

 

Please mark an X in the boxes below to confirm that you consent to disclosure of 

your identity and details of your complaint being shared with the Member being 

complained of and with those identified in section 1 above (if applicable): 

 

1. I agree to my identify being disclosed 

  

Yes 

No 

 

 

2. I agree to the detail of my complaint being disclosed 

 

Yes 

No 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 72



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

Please provide us with details of why you believe we should withhold your 

name and/or the details of your complaint: 

If you have answered No to either or both of the above questions:  

 

 

 

8. Informal Resolution 

 

It is often possible to resolve complaints without recourse to formal investigation and 

hearing. In such cases it is important that appropriate action to seek to achieve 

informal resolution of the matter is undertaken without delay. 

 

To assist us in doing this it would be helpful if you could describe what remedy you 

are seeking/what action you think would be appropriate to resolve your complaint.  

 

Please provide us with details of what remedy you are seeking/what action you 
think might provide a satisfactory resolution to your complaint.  

 

 

9. Additional Help 
 

Page 73



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

Complaints must be submitted in writing. This includes electronic submissions. 

However, in line with the requirements of the Disability Discrimination Act 2000, we 

can make reasonable adjustments to assist you if you have a disability that prevents 

you from making your complaint in writing. 

 

The Council has access to a language line and can assist you to complete this 

form if English is not your first language. If you require any assistance, please 

contact Sach Khosa, Monitoring Officer on 01159173221. 

 

Please note, we will not be able to progress your complaint without receiving 

all the requested information, so it is important that you seek assistance to 

complete this form or provide this information, if necessary.    

 

Complainants are asked to treat the complaint confidential whilst the matter is 

being investigated. 

 

Please sign below to confirm that you have provided all the information requested 

in the complaint form and the content of this information is true to the best of your 

knowledge and belief. 

 

 

Signed…………………………………….  Date…………………………… 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 74



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

Equality monitoring 

The completion of the Council’s Equality Monitoring is voluntary and any 

information will be treated as confidential, and will not be disclosed when your 

complaint is considered. 

Ethnicity Monitoring  Categories 

How would you class yourself? Please tick 

White Asian or Asian British 

British   Indian 

Irish Pakistani 

Any other White background   Bangladeshi 

 Any other Asian background 

 

Black or Black British Other Ethnic Groups 

Caribbean   Chinese 

African Any other Ethnic group 

Any other Black background  Not stated 

 

Mixed 

White and Black Caribbean   Male 

White and Black African Female 

White and Asian  

Not stated 

Any other Mixed background  

 

Disability Monitoring Question 

Do you consider yourself as disabled or have any long term heath problem 

that limits daily activity? 

Yes No 

 

 

Page 75



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

Age Monitoring Categories 

Which of the following age groups do you belong to? 

17 years and under  18-24    

25-29  30-44    

45-59  60-64    

65+  

 

  

  

Page 76



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

 APPENDIX 4 

Summary of main changes to the Code of Conduct 

 

Revised Code of Conduct  Recommendation 

Part 1. General Provision  

 Added new introduction setting out legal requirement for 

the Code of Conduct 

 Added new section on Definitions for clarification 

 Added new section on the purpose of the Code of 

Conduct to ensure Members have a clear understanding 

for importance of Code 

 Added new section on the application of the Code, so 

Members have clarity on when the Code applies to them 

 Formatted the existing Codes principles under the 

relevant headings of the Nolan Principles 

LGA Model Code 

Part 2. General Obligations 

 Formatted the existed obligations within the Code under 

the relevant headings for clarification 

 Added new obligations for bullying, harassment and 

discrimination 

 Added new obligations on confidentiality and access to 

information, which expands on the wording of the 

existing Code 

 Added new obligation not to bring my Council into 

disrepute 

 Added new obligation to comply with the Code and to 

undertake relevant training 

 Added new section on gifts and hospitality 

 Added new section on dispensation 

 

LGA Model Code 

Appendix A - Interest  LGA Model Code 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 77



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

Summary of main changes to the Arrangements 

Revised Arrangements Recommendation 

1. Introduction 

 Title revised to Arrangements for dealing with 

standards allegations to Arrangements for 

dealing with Code of Conduct complaints 

 Replaced Authority to read Council throughout 

the arrangements. 

 Added reference to the process will be fair to 

both the complainant and the Member being 

complained about. 

 

Amended and updated to 

reflect Localism Act wording 

by Monitoring Officer 

Amended to have 

consistency throughout the 

document by Monitoring 

Officer 

Task and Finish Groups & 

MO recommendation 

3. Definitions 

 New definition added for Subject Member 

amended to Member being investigated 

 New definition added for Co-opted Member to 

provide necessary clarity. 

 Definition for Local Resolution changed to 

Informal Resolution. 

 

Task and Finish Groups & 

MO recommendation. 

Considered useful and 

necessary to provide clarify 

by Task and Finish Group 

and MO 

4. Make a complaint 

 Revised complaint form to ensure we guide 

the complainant to provide the necessary 

information that will be required to assess the 

complaint. 

 Added section to highlight support can be 

provided to complete the complaint form as 

required under the Equality Act 2010 

provisions. 

 Added section that Parish Council as a whole 

should if necessary submit a complaint 

concerning a Parish Councillors conduct 

towards a Clerk, in line with best practice 

recommendations. 

 

Implementing CSPL best 

practice recommendation 10. 

 

Implementing CSPL best 

practice recommendation 10.  

 

Implementing CSPL best 

practice recommendation 11. 

 

6. Confidentiality 

 Added if the Complainant withdraws the 

complaint their identity and nature of the 

complaint of the complaint will not be shared 

with the Member being investigated. 

 Added any decision to withhold details about a 

complaint should be taken only where the 

 

Necessary clarification made 

by Monitoring Officer 

 

Task and Finish Groups 

Page 78



Governance, Audit and Standards Committee   14 March 2022 

 

Monitoring Officer considers that exceptional 

grounds exist. 

recommendation & MO 

 

7 Conflict of Interest. 

 Added new conflict of interest section to 

ensure there are arrangements in place to 

progress complaints where conflict of interests 

arise. 

Implementing CSPL best 

practice recommendation 13. 

8. What will happen with the complaint 

 New assessment criteria and initial intake test 

add to ensure clear straightforward public 

interest test against which allegations can be 

filtered is included in the arrangements. 

 Timescales for handling complaints, 

investigations, hearing and outcome have 

been specified. 

 New section under stage 1 has been added to 

clarify who the Member being investigated can 

share the complaint with. 

 Added requirement for the Complainant to 

keep the complaint confidential whilst the 

complaint is being investigated. 

 Amended reference to Governance, 

Standards and Audit Panel Hearing to 

Standards Hearing Sub Committee and added 

further direction requirements under stage 4, 

procedure for the hearing, to clarify the 

process for all involved. 

 

 

Implementing CSPL best 

practice recommendation 6 

& 8. 

 

Implementing CSPL best 

practice recommendation 10 

and considered necessary 

by Task and Finish Group  

 

Task and Finish Groups & 

MO 

 

Task and Finish Groups & 

MO  

 

8. Sanction 

 Revised and added the full range of sanctions 

available to the Standards Hearing Sub 

Committee to impose. 

 

Task and Finish Groups & 

MO recommendation 

 

Page 79



This page is intentionally left blank



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

 
Report of the Monitoring Officer 
 

CHANGES TO GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND DRAFT 
PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS FOR MAY 2022 TO APRIL 2023 

1. Purpose of Report 

To update Members with the draft Programme of Meetings for May 2022 to April 
2023 for Cabinet, Council and Committees and seek resolutions on issues in 
relation to the changes to governance arrangements. 

2. Recommendation 

Council is asked to RESOLVE that: 

1.  The Council adopt a Leader and Cabinet style of governance with      

implementation at the annual Council meeting in May 2022. 

2.   The structure for the new governance arrangements as included in the 

report be approved. 

3.  The Programme of Meetings for the Council’s Committees for May 2022 

to April 2023, be approved. 

3. Detail 

Following the Changes to Governance Arrangements report that was submitted to 
full Council on 13 October 2021 the proposal in principal is to adopt a Leader and 
Cabinet style of governance from May 2022. A resolution is now required to 
confirm the changes to the governance model used by the Council. 
 
A number of cross-party task and finish group meetings have taken place to 
consider details of the details of the governance. These meetings considered a 
number of options and the outcome of the group’s considerations is included in 
the report. It should be noted that no amendments are suggested for Planning 
Committee, but it is proposed that the responsibilities of the Alcohol and 
Entertainments Licensing Committee be subsumed by the Licensing and Appeals 
Committee. 
 
Attached at appendix 1 is the proposed structure for the new arrangements in 
addition to further information around the roles of the Cabinet, Cabinet members 
and committees.  The remit of the proposed Portfolio Holders is included at 
appendix 2. Furthermore, at appendix 3 is a proposal for the programme of 
meetings for Cabinet and Committee.  Consideration has been given to the 
requirements of the timing of meetings to approve the relevant budget reports for 
financial purposes. 
 
Circulated separately with the agenda are the draft sections of the of the 
constitution which have been amended by the Task and Finish Group. These will 

Page 81

Agenda Item 6.



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

be presented to the Full Council meeting in May for approval by members but are 
included here for early consideration. 
 
In accordance with the Member Development Charter criteria the programme 
takes account school holidays, cultural and faith commitments and has been 
composed so as to avoid collision, where possible, with any significant dates. 

4. Financial Implications 

Officer resource impact will need to be kept under review. The comments from 
the Head of Finance Services were as follows: 
 
The overall impact on the cost of Members Allowances under the new governance 
arrangements is broadly neutral and will not require any changes to budgets at 
this stage.  Other cost associated with training and internal resources will be 
contained within existing budgets. 

5. Legal Implications 

The comments from the Monitoring Officer Services were as follows:  

The Localism Act 2011 sets out the provisions to enable local authorities in 

England to change their governance arrangements. A resolution of full Council, at 

the annual general meeting will be required before the authority is able to change 

its governance arrangements to a different type.  

A notice must also be published informing the public: 

1.     That the local authority has resolved to change its governance 
                  arrangements.  

2. The date that it intends to change the governance arrangements. 
3. What the main features of the change will be. 
4. Where copies of any documents detailing the changes can be found, 

this should be at the local authority’s principal office and the address 
of its principal office should be provided. 

 
There is no minimum period of time between resolution and the change time. 

6. Background papers  

Nil. 

 

Page 82



Notes:
• No Executive Members can be on Scrutiny Committees
• Collective decision making by Cabinet
• Portfolio holders cannot be Chair of regulatory Committees
• Proportionality must be observed across non- Executive Committees

SCRUTINYREGULATORY/ 
QUASI JUDICIAL EXECUTIVE

Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee

JOINT COMMITTEES

Bramcote Bereavement 
Services Joint Committee

WORKING GROUPS

Local Joint Consultative 
Committee

Governance, Audit and 
Standards Committee

Standards Hearing 
Sub Committee

Advisory Shareholder  Sub 
Committee

Planning Committee

Discretionary Housing 
Payments Panel

Senior Officers 
Employment Committee

Licensing and Appeals 
Committee

Licensing and Appeals

Alcohol and Entertainment  
Licensing

Policy Advisory Committee
(Non-Decision Making Committee of 

the Executive)
(To include: Resources and Personnel 

Policy, Economic Development and Asset 
Management, Housing, Leisure and 

Health, Environment and Climate Change, 
Community Safety)

EXECUTIVE

FULL COUNCIL

Leader Deputy Leader

Portfolio Holder
(Resources and 

Personnel Policy)

Portfolio Holder 
(Economic 

Development and 
Asset Management)

Portfolio Holder 
(Housing) Portfolio Holder 

(Leisure and Health)

Member with 
voting rights but no 

portfolio

Member with 
voting rights but no 

portfolio

Portfolio Holder 
(Environment and 
Climate Change)

Portfolio Holder 
(Community 

Safety)

CABINET

Governance Arrangements APPENDIX 1

Page 83



This page is intentionally left blank



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

 

The Cabinet 

Members will note that the Task and Finish Group’s proposals suggest that 

Cabinet will comprise of the Leader, Deputy Leader, six portfolio holders and two 

non-portfolio holders with full voting rights. The Leader will make appointments to 

the Cabinet in line with legislation, and the portfolio holders’ responsibilities are 

included in appendix two. 

Decision Making 

The Task and Finish Group suggested that Cabinet should be a collective decision 

making body with no delegation to portfolio holders.  

Key Decisions 

A key decision is qualified as where expenditure is over £250,000 or where two or 

more wards are affected. These decisions must be published on a Forward Plan 

for a minimum of 28 days prior to a decision being taken. 

Policy and Advisory Committee 

This will be a non-decision making committee of the executive and will be 

appointed to by the Leader. It is envisaged that the committee’s work programme 

will be set by Cabinet and will engage in pre-decision consideration of important 

topics prior to their submission to Cabinet. 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

There will be a number of standing items on the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee’s (OSC) work programme, such as budget and performance related 

issues, however, the OSC will also have the ability to set up task and finish groups 

to undertake specific reviews or policy development work.  

The OSC will also operate the call-in procedure, which provides a mechanism for 

councillors to intervene when it is considered that a decision taken by the Cabinet 

needs to be reconsidered. 

Notice of Cabinet decisions is given within three working days of the meeting. Prior 

to a further five working days elapsing, notice must be given to the Monitoring 

Officer that an item is to be called-in. The OSC will then hold a special meeting 

and, if required, the Cabinet will hold an extraordinary meeting to consider the 

recommendations of the OSC and take action to either amend their decision or 

take no further action. 

 

 

 

 

Page 85



This page is intentionally left blank



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

          APPENDIX 2  
 

The Remit of the Proposed Portfolio Holders 
 

Leader 
 
The Leader has the power to discharge Cabinet functions them self and / or delegate 
the discharge of Cabinet functions to: 
 

 The Cabinet as a whole; 

 A Committee of the Cabinet;  

 An individual Cabinet Member;  

 An individual Officer;  

 A joint Committee;  

 Another local authority.  

 Where the Leader has delegated a Cabinet function they retain the power to 
discharge that function them self. The Leader may also reserve particular 
functions to them self.  

 The Cabinet discharges those functions included within the terms of reference of 
the Cabinet Portfolios as set out below.  

 The Cabinet discharges those functions of a local authority specified in local 
government legislation as the executive functions of an authority to be exercised 
by its executive or cabinet; including functions that may be (but need not be) the 
responsibility of an executive or cabinet referred to in Schedule 2 of the Local 
Authorities (Functions and Responsibilities) (England) Regulations 2000.  

 No functions of the Cabinet (other than those required under the law to be 
exercised by the Leader) shall be exercised other than by way of a meeting of 
the Cabinet unless an express delegation is in place.  

 To determine attendance of Members at conferences 

 The Cabinet determines its business and makes decision on the basis of 
collective decision-making. 

 
Deputy Leader 
 

 The Deputy Leader will be a Councillor appointment to the position by the 
Leader. 

 The Deputy Leader will hold office until the end of the term of office of the 
Leader; or until they: 

 are removed from office by decision of the Leader;  

 resign from the office; or 

 are no longer a Councillor 
 
If for any reason the Leader is unable to act, or the office of the Leader is vacant, the 
Deputy Leader must act and exercise all functions reserved to the Leader in their 
absence.  
 
If for any reason the Leader and Deputy Leader are unable to act, or their offices are 
vacant, the remaining Cabinet Members may act collectively or appoint an interim 
Leader until the next Council meeting where a new Leader will be elected.  

Page 87



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

 
The Policy Advisory Committee 
  
The Leader has established the Policy Advisory Committee as a Cabinet Committee. 
The Policy Advisory Committee supports and assists the Cabinet in the development 
of policies and strategies including resources and personnel, economic development 
and asset management, housing, leisure, health, environment and climate change and 
community safety.  This will be a non-decision making committee of the executive. 
 
Other Committees  
 
The Leader may establish such other Cabinet Committees as may be required from 
time to time, the terms of reference and membership of which shall be determined by 
the Leader.  
 
The Portfolio General Terms of Reference 
 

Each portfolio holder is able to exercise the following functions in relation to their 
remit:  
 

 To provide strategic direction to any delivery body established by the Council;   

 To keep the policies of their portfolio under review;   

 To consider and recommend the letting of contracts to third parties where the 
value of the contract exceeds delegation limits as set out in procurement standing 
orders. (where within Budget);  

 To identify opportunities for future income generation and cost savings;  

 To examine further procurement and collaborative working opportunities with the 
private sector and other local authorities;  

 To determine responses on behalf of the Council to any government, local 
authority or other consultation;  

 To consider ways of achieving reductions in ongoing financial commitments 
through a review of essential and desired services and service levels.  

 
Resources & Personnel Policy Portfolio 
 
The Resources and Personnel Policy Portfolio Specific Terms of Reference are:  
 

 To keep the Council’s resources under review. 

 To consider and recommend to the Council the level of council house rents, 
service charges and the level of council tax. 

 To consider and recommend to the Council the overall capital programme and 
revenue budget: - 

 To approve requests for supplementary capital and revenue estimate; 

 To consider and recommend write off debts in excess of the current limit for 
delegation contained within Financial Regulations;  

 To consider and recommend the use of the Insurance Fund; 

 To consider and recommend the Council's bankers; 

 To consider and recommend virement between budget heads above any limits 
prescribed in Financial Regulations 

Page 88



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

 To consider and recommend the means to attract external sources of funding 
into the Borough across the whole range of the Council's functions. 

 To consider and recommend the letting contracts to third parties where the value 
of the contract exceeds delegation limits as set out in procurement procedure 
rules.  

 To consider and recommend purchases of Information Technology equipment 
and assistance within the Budget. 

 To consider in detail those areas of the revenue budgets affecting the General 
Fund and Housing Revenue Account (HRA) which are judged to be of the highest 
risk and monitor the position of the Council in relation to those areas. 

 To examine in detail, the proposals for budget savings and consider such plans 
as are deemed to be required to bring about those savings including the effects 
on employees and services. 

 To receive at regular intervals information as to revenue and capital budget 
monitoring. 

 To receive and respond to updates on government and external funding issues 
which have a direct effect on the budget position. 

 To receive regular updates on welfare benefit reforms and the effects on council 
tenants and council taxpayers. 

 To develop, any other policy (other than those policy documents reserved to the 
full Council) within the remit of the portfolio and without prejudice to the generality 
of the foregoing to develop. 

 To consider and recommend the Emergency Plan; 

 To consider and recommend the Information Technology Strategy;  

 To consider and recommend the Asset Management Strategy; 

 To consider and recommend The Capital Strategy; 

 To consider and recommend the Sustainable Communities Strategy; 

 To consider and recommend other such policies and strategies as Council may 
from time to time decide should be adopted.  

 To monitor the effects of the countywide business rates pooling arrangement on 
the finances of the Council. 

 To consider and recommend the People Strategy and any other policy or strategy 
concerning human resources. 

 To consider and deal with issues relating to the Council’s establishment structure 
and employees, including approval of significant changes to local terms and 
conditions and determining the discretionary elements of both national and local 
conditions of service.  

 Consideration of the draft pay policy before submission to Council. 

 To receive reports on post-entry training and development for employees 
including apprenticeships and to approve the Training and Development Policy. 

 To consider and recommend the Job Evaluation Scheme and pay structure 
arising from it, subject to the approval of Council as appropriate  

 To receive recommendations from the Local Joint Consultative Committee. 

 Consider and recommend the Health and Safety at Work Policy. 

 To consider and recommend in relation to the exercise the Council’s 
shareholder/Member function in respect of its wholly or partly owned companies. 

 
 
 

Page 89



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

Economic Development & Asset Management Portfolio 
 
The Economic Development & Asset Management Portfolio Specific Terms of 
Reference are: 
 

 To monitor the impact of significant external projects on the Council’s services. 

 To monitor progress on economic development, regeneration and Levelling up 
strategies. 

 In association with the Planning Committee to propose matters of planning policy 
to the Council in accordance with Part II of the Town and Country Planning Act 
1990.  

 To consider and recommend authorisation of the supplementary planning 
documents, development briefs and other documents under the local 
development scheme. 

 To consider and recommend the means to attract external sources of funding 
into the Borough across the whole range of the Council's functions. 

 To consider all matters relating to the Strategic Location for Growth and the wider 
area including the boundaries of the site, the retention of open space, the 
promotion of employment, integration with the proposed and existing 
infrastructure including road improvements, the tram and rail links and the 
suitable mix of development within the site. 

 To consider and make recommendations to acquire, appropriate and dispose of 
land or property and of interests in or over land. 

 To consider and make recommendations to let, negotiate and settle leases and 
rents for Council owned land or property. (excluding Council Houses) 

 To consider and make recommendations to policies with regards to the Council’s 
land, buildings and assets.  

 To consider and recommend the making of compulsory purchase orders and 
carry out all procedures. 

 To consider and recommend the making of conservation areas.   

 To consider and recommend supplementary planning documents, development 
briefs and other documents under the local development scheme.  

 To consider and recommend directions under Article 4 Town and Country 
Planning (General Permitted Development) order 1995 

• To perform the functions of the Council under the Planning and Compulsory 
Purchase Act 2004 capable of being exercised by a Committee. 

 The portfolio shall lead on plans for strategic development, economic 
development, levelling up and regeneration throughout the area. 

• Policies for Car Parking; 

• To consider and recommend in relation to the exercise of the Council’s 
shareholder / Member function in respect of its wholly or partly owned 
companies. 

 
Housing Portfolio 
 
The Housing Portfolio Specific Terms of Reference are: 
 

• To consider and recommend Council policy relating to sales of council houses. 

Page 90



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

• To consider and recommend Council policy relating to council house rent 
collection. 

• To consider and recommend investment in, the improvement of and carbon 
reduction of the Council housing stock. 

• To consider and recommend housing building schemes. 

• To consider and recommend the policy to apply to the provision of funds for aids 
and adaptations to Council properties. 

• To consider and recommend any other policy (other than those policy documents 
reserved to the full Council) within the remit of the portfolio and without prejudice 
to the generality of the foregoing to develop: - 

• To consider and recommend The Homelessness Strategy 

• To consider and recommend policies for the management of all buildings and 
lands held for housing purposes. 

• To consider and recommend the policy for allocating Council housing stock. 

• To recommend the provision of assistance to Housing Associations, privately let 
housing accommodation, and payments to enable people to access such 
accommodation as the law may enable. 

• To recommend the declaration of renewal areas, criteria for discretionary 

housing facilities grants and provision of other grants as the law may permit 

from time to time 

• Any other such policies and strategies as Cabinet may from time to time decide 
should be developed. 

• To consider and recommend applications for any aids and adaptations to Council 
housing above £30,000. 

 
Leisure & Health Portfolio 
 
The Leisure & Health Portfolio Specific Terms of Reference are: 
 

• To determine policies to promote artistic, sporting and cultural activities within 
the Borough. 

• To develop any other policy (other than those policy documents reserved to the 
full Council or within the remit of any other portfolio) and without prejudice to the 
generality of the foregoing to develop: 

• Policies for the management of all buildings and lands held for leisure purposes 
including leisure centres and museums.  

• The equalities strategy. 

• The arts and events and leisure strategies. 

• To organise and implement twinning and friendship activities. 

• To consider and recommend the policy for events taking place in parks, open 
spaces and recreation grounds owned or managed by the Council. 

• Review the Council’s arrangements that each Council service area has in place 
to respond to individuals, who may have mental health issues and need to access 
Council Services.  

Page 91



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

• To consider and recommend twinning and friendship activities 

• To consider and recommend the letting of third parties where the value of the 
contract exceeds delegation limits as set out in procurement standing orders. 
(Where within budget) 

• Recommend such policies and action plans as are necessary to promote the 

physical and mental health of the population of Broxtowe. 

• Recommend such policies and action plans as are necessary to promote the 

physical and mental health of the population of Broxtowe. 

• Develop and recommend plans and policies to prevent ill health occurring and 
promote the wider determinants of health. 

• Work to promote physical activity across Broxtowe. 

• Come forward with proposals to reduce loneliness and isolation, and promote 
social cohesion across Broxtowe 

• Develop and work to implement plans to enable people to live well with dementia 
in Broxtowe. 

• Work to develop actions and plans to reduce health inequalities. 
 
Environment & Climate Change Portfolio 
 
The Environment & Climate Portfolio Specific Terms of Reference are: 
 

• To develop any policy (other than those policy documents reserved to the full 
Council or within the remit of any other portfolio holder) and without prejudice to 
the generality of the foregoing to develop: - 

• To consider and recommend Management and recycling arrangements and 
policies. 

• To consider and recommend Policies in respect of street cleansing and the 
removal of litter. 

• To consider and recommend Policies regarding energy; 

• To consider and recommend Policies regarding air quality; 

• To consider and recommend Policies for allotments and cemeteries; 

• To consider and recommend the Energy conservation strategy; 

• To consider and recommend the Waste management strategy. 

• To consider and recommend policies in respect of stray dogs. 

• To consider and recommend Contaminated land strategy 

• To consider and recommend applications for and amendments to waste 
transfer stations. 

• To lead on the development and implementation of the Climate Change Plan 
for Broxtowe Borough Council.  

• To take the climate change agenda forward and ensure that all departments 
are engaged in this process.  

• To lead on the Travel Plan. 

Page 92



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

• To feed into the Nottinghamshire and Derbyshire Local Authority Energy 
Partnership, Nottinghamshire Climate Change Partnership and Broxtowe 
Borough Partnership. 

• To work in partnership with service providers to identify opportunities for the 
delivery of services, avoid duplication and maximise resources. 

• To keep under review, the functions under the Environmental Protection Act 
1990 

• To consider and recommend all issues relating to environmental improvements. 
 

Community Safety Portfolio 
 
The Community Safety Portfolio Specific Terms of Reference are: 
 

• To develop any other policy (other than those policy documents reserved to the 
full Council) and without prejudice to the generality of the foregoing to develop:  

• To consider and recommend policies regarding transport, save those functions 
in respect of hackney carriage and private hire vehicles delegated to the 
Licensing and Appeals Panel; 

• To consider and recommend Anti-Social Behaviour strategy; 

• To consider and recommend Community safety policies; 

• To consider and recommend Safeguarding and domestic violence policies; 

• To consider and recommend Local Strategic Partnership strategies and policies; 

• To consider and recommend Public Protection Strategies; 

• To consider and recommend Strategies and Policies arising from the Anti-Social 
Behaviour, Crime and Policing Act 2014; 

• To consider and recommend the surveillance camera policy; 

• To consider and recommend Policies under the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013. 

• To consider and recommend applications for vehicle operator’s licences required 
for the Council’s business; to authorise objections to vehicle operator licence 
applications made by third parties. 

• To consider and recommend enforcement under the Sunday Trading Act 1994. 

• To receive the minutes of the South Nottinghamshire Community Safety 
Partnership. 

• To receive reports in relation to Nottinghamshire Police and Crime Panel. 

• To consider and recommend issues in relation to the Council’s Surveillance 
Camera Systems. 
 

 The Policy Advisory Working Group  
 

The Leader has established the Policy Advisory Working Group as a Working Group 
of the Cabinet. The Policy Advisory Working Group supports and assists the Cabinet 
in the development of policies and strategies including resources and personnel, 
economic development and asset management, housing, leisure, health, environment 
and climate change and community safety.  
 

Page 93



 
COUNCIL   13 April 2022 

 The Policy Advisory Working Group may make recommendations to the Cabinet but 
has no decision-making powers. 
 
Other Committees 
 
The Leader may establish such other Cabinet Committees as may be required from 
time to time, the terms of reference and membership of which shall be determined by 
the Leader. 
 

Page 94



COUNCIL  13 April 2022 

 
 

 
APPENDIX 3  

 
Meeting dates for May 2022 to April 2023 

 
4 May 2022 

11 May 2022 

16 May 2022 

24 May 2022 

8 June 2022 

9 June 2022 

14 June 2022 

16 June 2022 

21 June 2022 

23 June 2022 

30 June 2022 

6 July 2022 

7 July 2022  

13 July 2022 

18 July 2022 

19 July 2022 

21 July 2022 

27 July 2022 

28 July 2022 

1 September 2022 

13 September 2022 

7 September 2022 

20 September 2022 

22 September 2022 

26 September 2022 

4 October 2022 

5 October 2022 

12 October 2022 

17 October 2022 

1 November 2022 

Planning Committee  

COUNCIL 
Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 

Cabinet  

Planning Committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Licensing and Appeals Committee 

Policy Advisory Committee 

Cabinet  

Bramcote Bereavement Services Joint Committee 

Local Joint Consultative Committee 

Planning Committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

COUNCIL 
Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 

Cabinet  

Annual Borough/Parish Council  

Planning Committee 

Policy Advisory Committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

Cabinet 

Planning Committee 

Licensing and Appeals Committee 

Policy Advisory Committee 

Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 

Cabinet 

Planning Committee 

COUNCIL 
Advisory Shareholder Sub-Committee 

Cabinet  

Page 95



COUNCIL  13 April 2022 

 
 

2 November 2022 

10 November 2022 

16 November 2022 

17 November 2022 

24 November 2022 

28 November 2022 

29 November 2022 

6 December 2022 

7 December 2022 

8 December 2022 

14 December 2022 

20 December 2022 

11 January 2023 

12 January 2023 

17 January 2023 

26 January 2023 

30 January 2023 

31 January 2023 

1 February 2023 

2 February 2023 

7 February 2023 

9 February 2022 

21 February 2022 

23 February 2023 

1 March 2023 

8 March 2023 

13 March 2023 

14 March 2023  

 

Planning Committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Alderman and Freeman Ceremony COUNCIL 

Policy Advisory Committee 

Local Joint Consultative Committee 

Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 

Cabinet  

Licensing and Appeals Committee 

Planning Committee 

Policy Advisory Committee  

COUNCIL  
Cabinet 

Planning Committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Cabinet 

Policy Advisory Committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Planning Committee 

Local Joint Consultative Committee 

Cabinet 

Policy Advisory Committee 

Licensing and Appeals Committee 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

COUNCIL 
Planning Committee 

Governance, Audit and Standards Committee 

Cabinet 

 
 

Page 96


	Agenda
	3. MINUTES
	5. REVISED CODE OF CONDUCT AND ARRANGEMENTS FOR DEALING WITH CODE OF CONDUCT COMPLAINTS
	100.1 22 GAS committee report

	6. CHANGES TO GOVERNANCE ARRANGEMENTS AND DRAFT PROGRAMME OF MEETINGS FOR MAY 2022 TO APRIL 2023
	0.02Cttee Structure Chart March 2022
	0.02.1Appendix 1 after the structure chart
	0.03APPENDIX 2 Governance arrangement report
	0.04 APPENDIX 3 Governance arrangement report




